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A very big year

Looking back on 2010/11, I will recall two significant events for NZICA – Fit for the Future 3:
a review of member engagement, and the impact of the Christchurch earthquakes.

PRESIDENT’S REPORT

President’s report

Support for members in Christchurch

NZICA has some 3,000 members in Canterbury, mostly in Christchurch. Many of them
worked in businesses in Christchurch’s CBD; hundreds are employed by the 75 Chartered
Accountancy practices within the initial cordon area. The profession was a core part of
Christchurch’s inner city and, like other CBD businesses, accountancy firms had to relocate
to the city fringe or elsewhere.
Our members have experienced significant loss and upheaval – six members lost their lives,
four members lost their spouses, others were injured. My sympathies go to the families and
loved ones of these people.
The tragic impact of Christchurch’s February earthquake warranted urgent and significant action
by NZICA to support and safeguard the wellbeing and livelihood of the local membership.
NZICA adopted a multi-pronged approach. Attention was on assisting members with the
immediate trauma and impact of the quake – this included offers of counselling, immediate
relief from compliance obligations and the initiation of a series of informative forums and
seminars on pertinent post-quake business concerns. The feedback I garnered from members
was that this response was both appreciated and appropriate.
I would like to acknowledge the work of Chief Executive Terry McLaughlin FCA, his Executive
Management Team and the staff at NZICA for their considered, relevant and proactive
response to members’ needs in Christchurch. I was incredibly proud of NZICA during this time.
My thanks to the many members around New Zealand who offered their assistance, supported
a fellow member, or gave to the NZICA Earthquake Appeal. As a collective, we raised over
$100,000 for Christchurch – a sum we have donated to business recovery.
Increasing member engagement

I was pleased to be sponsor for the third phase of Fit for the Future – member engagement.
This phase is focused on improving the way NZICA looks after its members, delivers products
and services, and engages with members, as well as looking at how our branches and
Councillor electoral model operate.
Proposals have been developed by a member steering group in response to member research
and the identification of issues with the current structure and operating model. This is a topic
that obviously resonates, as more than 2,500 members took the time to give us their thoughts
during the research phase.
The proposals address elements of local NZICA operations, structure and governance, and
ways in which we can improve access for members to NZICA products and services. There are
particular changes proposed around branch committees, and leverage of the successful
Special Interest Group model.
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Following the completion of the consultation period and consideration of member feedback,
final recommendations will be provided to Council and Board in late September 2011. If these
are approved, members will be asked to vote on Rule changes at the 2011 AGM.
Members can expect the new model and operations to be implemented by the NZICA team
in 2012.
In appreciation

I would like to thank Richard Austin FCA for his courage this year as he continued in his role as
Vice President. Richard’s wife, Susan Selway, was tragically one of the victims of the February
earthquake in Christchurch. I look forward to seeing the outcomes of Fit for the Future 3
progress under his stewardship.
The Council goes from strength to strength under its new mandate and has provided strong
oversight of the new business plan and the Fit for the Future 3 proposals. My thanks to them
for their ongoing contribution and support.
I have thoroughly enjoyed my time as President in a year that none of us will likely forget.
I continue to be impressed by the extraordinary talent and leadership we have within the
membership, and the bright future we have.
Thank you.

Ross Jackson FCA
NZICA President 2011
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Council
Ross Jackson FCA (President), Richard Austin FCA (Vice President), John Apanowicz CA, John Bennett FCA (absent),

Sharon Cooke FCA (absent), Richard Dey CA, Andrew Dick CA, Graham Edwards FCA, Grant Ellis CA, Catherine Gillies CA (absent),

Peter Hanson CA, Fred Hutchings FCA, Laurie Jordan FCA, Ian Leggett FCA, Don MacKenzie CA, Rob McDonald CA,

Rex McKinnon FCA (absent), Anne Marett CA, Kevin Murphy CA, Baubre Murray CA, Chris Pool CA, Andrew Robinson FCA (absent),

Murray Taylor ACA, Susan Tremlett CA, Stephen Walker CA, Grant Wilson CA, Craig Wyatt CA
See page 57 for Council functions and additional detail
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A busy and successful year

I am pleased to report on a very busy and successful year for NZICA.
The Board has been focused on ensuring good progress is made implementing the strategic
plan, jointly agreed with Council last year.
The challenge was for NZICA to be ambitious in its approach, and I believe excellent progress
is being made given a difficult environment. The organisation has operated within its budget
parameters and delivered on a significant number of planned projects. Space does not allow
me to report on all of these; however, I have sought to highlight some key areas.

BOARD CHAIR’S REPORT

Board Chair’s report

Fit for the Future

Fit for the Future is the name we have given a series of projects designed to revitalise NZICA
at both a governance and operational level. The focus of these projects is ensuring NZICA is
relevant to membership.
During the year implementation of the second stage of the project resulted in the
establishment of our new Advisory Groups.
These Advisory Groups, made up exclusively of volunteers from the membership, will inform
and guide NZICA, bringing perspectives from across the profession. The calibre of members
who made themselves available to serve on these groups is most gratifying, and the Board is
looking forward to their input.
The next phase of Fit for the Future has focused on ensuring the best possible service delivery
to, and engagement with, members. At the time of writing this report the Board are preparing
for a joint session with Council to consider the outcomes of the consultation phase. Again
can I record the Board’s thanks to those members who provided insights during the research
phase, and those who submitted feedback on the initial proposals.
International connectivity

NZICA has made great progress in our collaboration with the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Australia (ICAA).
A key strand in our overall strategy is the strengthening of the Chartered Accountant brand.
By working with ICAA we are able to contribute to this with a trans-Tasman view.
The cornerstone of this work is the development of a common Chartered Accountants
Program. This program is world class and will align the training of Chartered Accountants on
both sides of the Tasman. It will be launched in 2013.
A further notable achievement was the launch of a tripartite agreement with ICAA and the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) in the UK to support public
sector accountants. This led to the launch of a key resource, The Role of the CFO in the Public
Sector at our successful CFO and CEO Conference in June, attended by the Minister of Finance,
Bill English.
Further collaboration is likely to follow given successful delivery of our current projects and a
commitment to ongoing innovation.
There continues to be a strong trend towards globalisation in the profession. We see this in
globalisation of standards, transferability of qualifications and expertise, and professional bodies
forming close alliances. NZICA remains committed to working with our Global Accounting
Alliance (GAA) colleagues throughout the world to ensure our member needs are met.
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Products and services

A further focus of our strategy is the development of products and services to members.
This year members will have seen the growth of our professional training offering, along
with the release of several publications to support member needs.
This area will continue to be a key emphasis for NZICA in the coming years.
Significant milestone in NZICA’s history

On 1 July, 2011 the External Reporting Board (XRB) officially came into being, and accounting
and auditing standard setting transitioned from NZICA to this new Board.
The XRB fulfils the functions previously accorded to the Accounting Standards Review Board
and two NZICA boards, the Financial Reporting Standards Board (FRSB) and the audit standard
component of the Professional Standards Board.
NZICA strongly supported this change. It is a positive move for the accounting profession and
allows NZICA to focus on providing a quality advocacy role for our members in this area.
We would like to thank the NZICA staff who have moved on under the new structure for their
many years of excellent service. We would also record thanks to those members who served on
the FRSB and the PSB and particularly the outgoing Chairs of those Boards, Joanna Perry FCA
and Neil Cherry FCA.
Appreciation

I would like to thank the Board members for their diligence and professionalism throughout
the year. I would also like to note the significant efforts of our CEO, Terry McLaughlin and his
team, who work diligently on behalf of members.

Graham Crombie FCA
NZICA Board Chair
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Highlights of 2010-2011

A plan in motion

Delivery of an ambitious business plan focused on providing
value to members through innovative products and services.

CA Program

Collaboration with ICAA paves the way for introduction
of a world-class qualifying programme in 2013.

Strong governance
The new Board and Council structure delivers value for
members by providing solid strategic insight and direction.

A new direction

Regulatory changes provide opportunities for NZICA to
step into new and important areas for the profession.
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Board
Graham Crombie FCA Partner and CEO, Polson Higgs
Graham is Chair of the Board and a Past President (2008) of NZICA. He holds several
Board and Chair appointments including being Chair of the Otago Museum, and
Deputy Chair of NZ Genomics Ltd.
Liz Hickey FCA

Company Director
Liz is a Director of a Crown research company, Environmental Science and Research Limited,
and a Director/Trustee of Southern Cross Healthcare entities.

Murray Jack CA

Chief Executive, Deloitte New Zealand
Murray is a former head of the Deloitte Asia Pacific consulting practice, a member of the Board
of the Financial Markets Authority, and brings wide governance experience to the Board.

Doug McKay

Chief Executive, Auckland Council

Doug has extensive experience as a Director, is a former Chief Executive of Sealord Group
Limited, and former Executive Chairman of Independent Liquor.
Non-NZICA member Director

Allan Newman FCA

Director, Sadler Oakly Newman
Allan is a former NZICA Councillor and past Chair of the former National Public Practice Committee.

Craig Norgate CA

Company Director and Investor
Craig is a Director of Port Taranaki Limited, Aotearoa Fisheries Limited, and Sealord Group Limited.

Neil Paviour-Smith CA Managing Director, Forsyth Barr
Neil is a Director of New Zealand Exchange Limited (NZX) and has extensive capital
markets experience.
Hugh Rennie QC

Queen’s Counsel, Harbour Chambers (Barristers)

Hugh is a former Non-Executive Chairman of M-Co International Ltd and former Non-Executive
Director of the Bank of New Zealand.
Non-NZICA member Director
EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

Ross Jackson FCA

NZICA President

Ross is a Managing Partner of McCulloch and Partners.

Richard Austin FCA

NZICA Vice President

Richard is a Director of Strategic Wealth Management Group, investment and business advisors.

Terry McLaughlin FCA

NZICA Chief Executive

Terry is a Director of the Global Accounting Alliance and Technical Advisor to Warren Allen FCA,
Deputy President of IFAC.
See page 59 for Board functions and additional detail
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A plan in action

This has been a year of significant achievement against an ambitious business plan, and
landmark regulatory changes that will forever leave their imprint on NZICA. It will also be
remembered for the ongoing examples of staggering resilience from our members in Canterbury.
This year we have launched a number of valuable publications in response to member
feedback. The first of a planned series of practical tools and templates, the Audit Manual and
Toolkit, represents a shift in focus for NZICA publications and illustrates the priority we are
giving to the delivery of practical guides for members. As standard setting has moved to the
External Reporting Board (XRB), NZICA will be delivering more application-based thought
leadership and tools to the membership.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT

Chief Executive’s report

Digital delivery of member-relevant products and services took a significant step forward in
November 2010, when we launched the new NZICA website. Our refreshed online presence
is key to ensuring we can deliver first-class products and services, and enable members to
connect to important information at their convenience. Further enhancements are planned to
nzica.com over the next year.
Under the strategic banner of qualifications that are flexible and international, we were
pleased to announce our plans to proceed with a joint Chartered Accountants Program with
ICAA. The new Program, to be introduced in 2013, reduces the academic requirement to three
years from four, and will include four technical modules and a capstone module that NZICA
will deliver jointly with the ICAA. The Program will be delivered via a mixture of face-toface and digital learning which not only future-proofs it, but also reflects the changing and
dynamic learning styles of the next generation of professionals.
Representing a collective voice

2010/11 represents a landmark year for regulatory changes. The advent of the Financial Markets
Authority (FMA), Auditor Regulation Act (ARA), the Financial Advisors Act (FAA) and new XRB
presented significant opportunities for NZICA. We were pleased to see our views and those of
the profession recognised in the eventual Auditor Regulation and External Reporting Acts.
We achieved our objective of co-regulation with the FMA, an outcome that is testament to the
submissions that were put forward on behalf of the membership. NZICA worked with 10 of
the major chartered accountancy practices to endorse the submission; the result is evidence of
the coordinated and unified response of the profession to the changes and is the model that
NZICA will use for future submissions and advocacy.
The 2010-11 year was also one of major tax reforms with a raft of legislative changes coming into
effect on 1 April. A number of these changes were announced as part of the May 2010 Budget and
the NZICA tax team, together with the Tax Advisory Group, were involved in active consultation
with Inland Revenue (IR) and the Government to successfully refine the initial proposals.
NZICA played a large role in identifying tax issues relating to the Canterbury earthquakes.
The Government responded to many of the issues we and our members put forward.
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We continue to work with IR in educating members on the changes, and in liaising between
members and IR on new and emerging earthquake-related tax issues.
In addition, NZICA continued to work with various teams in IR to strengthen the working
relationship between our members and the department. Of note is the inaugural survey of
members in September 2010 regarding members’ satisfaction with IR’s service.
The advocacy and thought leadership work of NZICA on behalf of the membership and public
will increase over the next year with the establishment of a new Technical Services team.
Meeting member needs

A detailed member research programme kicked off in 2010-11 to track our responsiveness and
performance across all aspects of the services NZICA provides to members. This research is
informing the development of services for members and will continue to steer the business.
Development of NZICA’s people is an important aspect of meeting the needs of members.
This year we have been focused on increasing capability within the branches and the
professional and product and service teams. The organisation’s focus on development
of a performance culture continues.
Protecting the brand

2010-11 represented a year of unprecedented disciplinary activity with a number of high profile
cases garnering media and member attention. Many of the cases heard were finance company
related and this reflects our proactive stance in addressing our regulatory responsibilities. Our
focus has been to achieve the right outcomes from a public interest point of view, while being
sensitive to the situation of the member.
We were pleased to be confirmed by the FMA as their partner in the licensing and oversight
of auditors this year. This reflects the consistent and strong performance of our disciplinary
process and team, and signals a new era for NZICA.
Financial overview

Our surplus for the year was slightly higher than budget which was due to good performance
from our professional development business and continued focus on cost reduction. We are
committed to keeping member subscriptions around current levels, with any increase limited
to inflationary movements at the most. We continue to focus on our costs so that we can
deliver new initiatives through reprioritisation.
We have also absorbed additional unbudgeted costs relating to our efforts to support our
members in Christchurch; progress our collaboration efforts with ICAA, in particular the joint
Chartered Accountants Program; and additional costs incurred in disciplinary cases.
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It became quickly apparent after the February earthquake that NZICA had an important role
to play in the ongoing support of our staff and members in Christchurch. While we were
fortunate that our staff and their families were safe, not all our members were as fortunate.
Within a month we had secured new offices in Riccarton for our team in Christchurch and
were facilitating forums and seminars for our members on topical issues such as insurance,
cashflow and the Government assistance packages.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT

Red and black

The NZICA and NZ Law Society’s Focus Group in Christchurch is proving an invaluable touchstone
for advice. With their guidance we continue to implement longer-term business and personal
support programmes for our members and staff in Christchurch.
NZICA will be keeping Christchurch top of mind for the foreseeable future, as I’m sure
we all will.
Finally, I would like to thank my team for their commitment and work in serving
our members.

Terry McLaughlin FCA
NZICA Chief Executive
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Executive Management Team
Terry McLaughlin FCA
Jeana Abbott

Chief Executive

Director – Human Resources

Bruce Bennett FCA

General Manager – Chartered Accountant Programme and Admissions

Androula Dometakis CA
Philip Keeling ATF
Allistair Kohing
Kevin Marlow

General Manager – Pre-admissions Programme (Prep)

Director – Information Technology

General Manager – Member Services and Support

Patricia McBride CA
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Director – Governance

Acting General Manager – Standards and Advocacy

Helen Mexted

General Manager – Sales, Marketing and Communications

Richard Moon

General Manager – Compliance, Quality and General Counsel

Arun Patel CA

Chief Financial Officer
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OUR YEAR –
A PLAN IN ACTION

NZICA’s strategic objectives
Relevant Products and Services
Qualifications that are
Flexible and International
Membership Growth
Co-regulation
Regional Alliance/Powerbase
International Leadership
Exemplar SME
Performance Culture
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Engagement across all NZICA professional
development and social events increased 25%
Highlights
•

Member engagement increases

•

International collaboration helps members

•
•

Introduction of e-learning programme and webinars

OUR YEAR – A PLAN IN ACTION

Relevant Products and Services

Responding to member requests for tools and templates

Engaging members

NZICA measures the relevance of its products and services by how they are received by members.
New Zealand member engagement across all continuing professional development (CPD)
and social events in 2010-11 increased 18% on the previous year. This reflected the focus of the
CPD team on delivering relevant development opportunities for members. Including overseas
branches, total unique engagement across all CPD and social events increased 25% over the
previous year. Satisfaction with the Customer Service Centre (CSC) increased 6% over the year.
Advances online

A key theme of the year was the introduction of webinars and a programme of online
courses and on-demand training. This included an online Leadership Academy for senior
professionals, providing access to over 500 resources from leading academics, researchers and
CEOs. Following trials in New Zealand, online training was offered internationally, attracting
members from Australia, the UK, North America, the South Pacific, Europe and South East Asia.
The library introduced a new online catalogue and a twitter update (twitter@nzicalibrary) for
members wanting to keep abreast of new resources.
International collaboration

The publication Clients4Life was delivered to both NZICA and ICAA members, with a single
team taking care of delivery of this product for both Institutes.
Collaboration with CIPFA and the ICAA bore fruit in the form of a Role of the CFO best practice
guidelines and the Leading in Hard Times thought leadership paper.
Tools and templates

The Audit Manual and Toolkit released in June responded to member
demand for practical work-based resources for SME audits, with good
uptake from members of the product and the supporting webinar.
Looking forward

The new financial year will bring more developments online and
further expansion of the courses delivered to members overseas.
With the establishment of the Technical Services team,
and input from the new Advisory Groups, NZICA products
and services will continue to develop to meet the needs
of members.
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Qualifications that are International and Flexible
The world-class Chartered Accountants Program
will meet the needs of candidates, members and
employers while retaining the proven quality,
technical rigour and practical content of
NZICA’s existing qualifying programme
Highlights
•

New trans-Tasman Chartered Accountants Program, to be launched in 2013

•

Ongoing work with the GAA and international accountancy bodies

•

Review of selected exemption/recognition agreements

Chartered Accountants Program revamp

NZICA and ICAA were pleased to announce this year the development of a new trans-Tasman
Chartered Accountants Program.
To be launched in 2013, the world-class program will meet the needs of candidates, members
and employers while building on the proven quality, technical rigour and practical content of
NZICA’s existing qualifying programme.
The new Program will use a practical and contextualised learning model that will benefit both
employers and those completing their training by its strong relationship to their working lives.
The collaboration between Australia and New Zealand on the Program reflects the
international quality of the qualification and the increasing globalisation of the profession.

International recognition

During the year, the exemption arrangements with the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (ACCA), the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI), and CPA
Australia were reviewed to ensure that members of these bodies receive appropriate
recognition when seeking membership of the CA and/or ACA Colleges.
NZICA has mutual recognition agreements, which streamline the process for members wishing
to work in the relevant countries, with the following professional organisations:
•

Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia (ICAA)

•

Chartered Accountants Ireland

•
•

22

Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW)
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland (ICAS)
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South African Institute of Chartered Accountants (SAICA)

•

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA)

•
•

•
•

Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA)

US International Qualifications Appraisal Board (IQAB) representing the National
Association of State Boards of Accountancy (NASBA) and the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (AICPA)
Association of Accounting Technicians (AAT UK)

Hong Kong Institute of Accredited Accounting Technicians (HKIAAT).

OUR YEAR – A PLAN IN ACTION

•

NZICA has partial exemption arrangements with:
•

CPA Australia

•

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).

•

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)

Looking forward

Over the next year NZICA will be working closely with employers, academics and students on
the development and transition details of the new joint Chartered Accountants Program.
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Membership Growth
The NZICA Student Affiliate programme
has 3,708 tertiary students enrolled,
up from 2,087 a year earlier
Highlights
•

Membership reaches 32,733

•

Presentations to more than 3,000 prospective members at secondary schools

•

Student Affiliate numbers grow

Modest growth

Total NZICA membership reached 32,733, up from 32,536 a year earlier. We had a higher number
of resignations of provisional members than normal – a reflection of the economy generally.
The next generation

A major focus of the year has been reaching out to accounting students to ensure they have
a clear pathway to NZICA membership. The NZICA Student Affiliate programme has 3,708
tertiary students enrolled, up from 2,087 a year earlier.
Engagement with secondary schools is relatively new terrain for NZICA. The work began
with 90 school visits and presentations to more than 3,000 students over the six months
to 30 June.
Investment in the profession’s future is supported by a programme that begins at secondary
school with NZICA’s support for the Youth Enterprise Trust’s business education, and continues
through to career development assistance prior to full NZICA membership. Career “speed
dating” with employers, and on-campus membership clinics are NZICA’s most popular tertiary
student services.
The number of provisional members completing the Professional Competence (PAS/PCE) and
Foundations programmes was broadly similar to last year.
Looking forward

To build upon our student membership base over the next year, NZICA will continue to focus
on the youth market, particularly the year 13 secondary students on the verge of deciding
their career path. In addition, we will continue to reinforce our presence with the academic
community and look to further engage with tertiary students through a series of student
events which have proven popular with students and prospective employers alike.
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Government consulted closely with NZICA on
the development of the Financial Advisors Act
and the Auditor Regulation Act
Highlights
•
•

Successful transition of accounting and auditing standard setting to the XRB

OUR YEAR – A PLAN IN ACTION

Co-regulation

Establishment of NZICA as the co-regulator for auditor oversight

External Reporting Board (XRB)

The Financial Reporting Amendment Act consolidated accounting and auditing standard
setting to a new government agency called the XRB.
The XRB has taken over the roles of the Accounting Standards Review Board and two NZICA Boards,
the Financial Reporting Standards Board and the Professional Standards Board (audit standards only).
NZICA strongly supported these changes, which align New Zealand’s standard-setting arrangements
with international norms. They also meets the “functional equivalence” requirements the
Government has sought as part of the Memorandum of Understanding on the coordination
of business law between Australia and New Zealand.
NZICA’s standard-setting staff and Boards were farewelled at a function in June, before moving
to the XRB.
The XRB is supported by two subsidiary Boards, the New Zealand Accounting Standards Board
(NZASB) and New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (NZAuASB).
In the best interests of the membership

NZICA submissions helped to shape the Government’s new regulatory package for the financial
sector. The Government consulted closely with NZICA on the development of the Financial
Advisors Act and the Auditor Regulation Act.
Under the Financial Advisors Act 2008, the Government recognised that the standards NZICA
holds its members to are robust. Members were granted exemptions from registration under
the Act when acting in the normal course of business.
Submissions on the Auditor Regulation Act saw a number of issues addressed. In particular,
NZICA strongly opposed the criminalisation of a breach of audit standards, which was not
adopted in the final legislation.
NZICA will be an accredited body under the Act and have responsibility for granting licences to
members and registration of their firms.
The Act is designed to more closely regulate the auditors of issuer entities. It requires the
licensing of auditors and the registration of audit firms. While the standard of auditing is
considered high in New Zealand, this change in legislation better aligns New Zealand’s auditing
with international practice.
Looking forward

NZICA will work closely with the FMA to put in place effective co-regulatory regimes for the oversight
of auditors and financial advisors. We will work closely with NZICA’s members in this regard.

New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants 2011 ANNUAL REPORT

25

Regional Alliance/Powerbase
The collaboration with ICAA aims to strengthen
the position of Chartered Accountants
on both sides of the Tasman
Highlights
•

Announcement of NZICA-ICAA collaboration

•

Tripartite agreement on resources with ICAA and CIPFA

•

Joint Chartered Accountants Program agreed with the ICAA

Trans-Tasman power block

In September 2010, the collaboration project underway between NZICA and the ICAA was
announced. The collaboration aims to strengthen the position of Chartered Accountants on
both sides of the Tasman.
It is overseen by the Chartered Accountants Australia New Zealand (CAANZ) Board consisting
of ICAA President Rachel Grimes FCA, ICAA Chief Executive Graham Meyer, NZICA Chairman
Graham Crombie FCA (CAANZ Chair), NZICA Chief Executive Terry McLaughlin FCA and Board
members from each Institute.
Joint Chartered Accountants Program

Agreement to develop a new joint Chartered Accountants Program represented a significant
milestone for the collaboration. Extensive work was undertaken during the year on the project,
which will see the joint Chartered Accountants Program launched in 2013.
The decision to deliver a new joint Program stems from a vision to create a world-class
Program that is rigorous, of high quality, internationally recognised, scalable locally and
overseas, and which effectively engages with current and future members.
Tripartite agreement boosts public sector resources

A collaborative relationship between the ICAA, CIPFA and
NZICA was developed to assist NZICA to better support
our members in the public sector.
The partnership delivered two thought leadership
publications – Leadership in Hard Times and the Role of
the Public Sector CFO – and it will continue to improve
the training opportunities and resources available to
Chartered Accountants working in the public sector.
Looking forward

Over the next year the collaboration with the ICAA is focused on two key areas:
•
•

the development, and preparation for launch, of the Chartered Accountants Program in 2013
IT systems.

NZICA will continue to look for opportunities to leverage the combined strength of Chartered
Accountants across New Zealand and Australia and to promote the quality of our members to
the world.
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Warren Allen FCA was elected Deputy President of
the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC),
the global body for the accountancy profession
Highlights
•

Warren Allen FCA made Deputy President of IFAC

•

Lead role in IASB project to reduce disclosure requirements in financial statements

•

OUR YEAR – A PLAN IN ACTION

International Leadership

Keith Wedlock FCA made Deputy President of CAPA

Warren Allen at IFAC

Warren Allen FCA was elected Deputy President of the International Federation of Accountants
(IFAC), the global body for the accountancy profession.
Warren is a Life Member and Past President of NZICA and current Senior Audit Partner with
Ernst and Young. He has represented New Zealand on the IFAC board since 2006. Prior to this
he was Chair of IFAC’s International Accounting Education Standards Board (1998-2004).
IFAC has 164 members and associates in 125 countries. IFAC represents over 2.5 million
professional accountants worldwide. Through its independent standard-setting boards, IFAC
sets international standards on ethics, auditing and assurance, education and public sector
accounting. It also promotes convergence to those standards and to the standards of the
International Accounting Standards Board.
Keith Wedlock at CAPA

Keith Wedlock FCA was elected Deputy President of the Confederation of Asian and Pacific
Accountants (CAPA).
Keith is a Past President of NZICA and current Partner of Glendinnings Chartered Accountants.
CAPA’s mission is to provide leadership in the development, enhancement, and coordination of
the accountancy profession in the Asia-Pacific region. NZ is one of 12 founding members. There
are now 31 member bodies in 24 jurisdictions.
Keith Wedlock assumed the Presidency of CAPA in September 2011.
Leading the world in financial reporting

NZICA was co-leader with the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Scotland (ICAS) in a project to make financial statements
more focused. The two Institutes were commissioned by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) to recommend
ways to reduce the volume of disclosures required under
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The joint
working group made recommendations that could reduce
disclosure volumes by 30%.
Joint group Chair Tony Frankham FCA, a Life Member and Past
President of NZICA, says the recommendations now deserve the
support of those involved in preparing, auditing, issuing and
using financial reports in every country using IFRS.
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Membership of the GAA

The Global Accounting Alliance (GAA) provides for members of Alliance bodies to receive local
support when working in another jurisdiction.
A “GAA Passport” enables NZICA members to access restricted areas of a local accounting
body’s website, find networking opportunities, training and development, and receive
publications at member rates when visiting the countries of other GAA bodies.
The GAA member bodies are:
•

Australia – Institute of Chartered Accountants of Australia (ICAA)

•

New Zealand – New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants (NZICA)

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

United States of America – American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA)
Canada – Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA)

South Africa – South African Institute of Chartered Accountants (SAICA)
Ireland – Chartered Accountants Ireland

Scotland – Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland (ICAS)

Hong Kong – Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKCPA)

England and Wales – Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales (ICAEW)
Japan – The Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (JICPA)
Germany – Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer in Deutschland e.V. (IDW).

Looking forward

Warren Allen’s term as Deputy President of IFAC is for two years. He is expected to assume
the Presidency in November 2012, which will be just the third time in 35 years that the IFAC
President has come from the southern hemisphere.
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NZICA’s website was transformed and relaunched
last November. Web traffic has risen 20%
Highlights
•

Alignment of strategy, business plans and individual performance

•

New Member Privilege Programme launched

•

New website draws increased web traffic

OUR YEAR – A PLAN IN ACTION

Exemplar SME

Strategy feeds business plan

The confirmation of NZICA’s five-year strategic goals in 2010 fed into the business planning
round for 2010/11, resulting in an improved alignment of business activity across divisions, and
the launch of relevant services for membership.
Behind this, a culture programme has been reviewing both organisational and individual
performance in order to identify and promote constructive work styles.
Investment in technology

NZICA’s website was transformed and relaunched last November. Web traffic has risen 20%.
An increased focus on online capability has led to new initiatives including Facebook pages
for secondary and tertiary students, a twitter feed of new resources available from the NZICA
library, and the delivery of e-learning resources and training throughout the world.
Protecting the brand

During the year ended 30 June 2011, 99 complaints were resolved by the Professional Conduct
team. This may indicate that the volume of complaints is returning to the levels experienced
prior to the increases in 2009 (142 complaints) and 2010 (134 complaints). Of the 99 complaints,
78% relate to public practitioners – consistent with previous years.
Of the cases resolved during they year, 67% were resolved at the Professional Conduct
Committee while 33% were resolved at the Disciplinary Tribunal (up from 13% a year earlier).
Member Privileges

A new Member Privileges programme was launched. This now
provides members with special offers on premium products
including banking, insurance and technology.
Four partners joined in the past year: Westpac, Accuro Health
Insurance, Fidelity Life and Vero CIS.
Looking forward

Over the next financial year ongoing enhancements will be made
to website capability and to ensure content relevancy.
The Fit for the Future 3 consultation will aid the development of
new resources and services to ensure that NZICA offers valuable
training, resources and support to members.
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OUR MEMBERS
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Membership

Overall NZICA membership increased to 32,733. Provisional membership fell slightly as a result
of an audit of inactive members.
24,000

CA

21,000

All
Provisionals

AT

18,000
Number of members

ACA
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Member Statistics

15,000
12,000
9,000
6,000
3,000
0

June
2007

June
2008

June
2009

June
2010

June
2011

June 2007

June 2008

June 2009

June 2010

June 2011

CA

22,492

22,781

23,081

23,487

23,947

AT

1,088

945

816

797

811

ACA

1,663

2,067

2,691

3,020

3,041

All Provisionals

4,179

4,597

5,061

5,204

4,890

Gender

More women in the profession – the profession continues to attract women, with another
notable increase in 2011.
20,000

Male
Female

Number of members

17,500

15,000

12,500

10,000

June
2007

June
2008

June
2009

June
2010

June
2011

June 2007

June 2008

June 2009

June 2010

June 2011

Male

18,637

18,918

19,255

19,396

19,296

Female

10,796

11,499

12,419

13,140

13,437
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Age

NZICA membership continues to reflect New Zealand demographics for age, with the largest
increase in the 50-59 age group.
10,000

Under 30
30 - 39

8,625

50 - 59
60+

Number of members

40 - 49

7,250
5,875
4,500
3,125
1,750
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2010
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2011

June 2007

June 2008

June 2009

June 2010

June 2011
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4,182
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4,481

30 - 39

6,938

8,421

8,354

8,164
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40 - 49

7,301

8,705

9,135

9,438

9,617

50 - 59

4,377
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5,709

6,073

60+

3,754
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4,366

4,429

392

436

352

281

Not Disclosed
(not graphed)
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Cultural diversity

In the past five years the number of Asian members has increased by 48%.
New Zealand
European
Other

17,500

14,500
Number of members

Asian

11,500

8,500

5,500

2,500

June
2007

June
2008

June
2009

June
2010

June
2011

June 2007

June 2008

June 2009

June 2010

June 2011

New Zealand European

15,450

16,906

17,450

17,401

17,195

Other

10,987

9,779

9,801

10,517

11,088

Asian

2,996

3,732

4,423

4,618

4,450

Occupational groups

The corporate sector remains the largest employer of NZICA members.
Public Sector
including Education

9.03%

Corporate Sector

11.67%

Public Practice
Other

June 2011
Public Sector
incl Education

3,821

Corporate Sector

15,567

Public Practice

10,390

Other

2,955

31.74%
47.56%

June 2011

New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants 2011 ANNUAL REPORT

35

36

OUR MEMBERS

89

32

,70
8

Keith Wedlock FCA
Deputy President, Confederation of Asia and Pacific Accountants (CAPA)
NZICA Past President
Partner, Glendinnings Chartered Accountants

A silver lining

Even a recession has a silver lining.
“One of the benefits of a recession is that it’s an opportune time to stop, think, assess and
plan,” says Keith Wedlock, FCA.
“It’s been a time for us to work a lot more closely with our clients to help them through
difficult times.”
He has been on the Board of CAPA since 2007. “It was a real privilege to be elected the
Deputy President of CAPA, in Wellington, in my home country,” he says, and acknowledges
the strong support from NZICA and his colleagues.
CAPA promotes the adoption and harmonisation of the best international accounting
standards and aims to improve the financial management capability in the private and
public sector in the Asia/Pacific region.
“Financial management capability in the public sector is essential in developing economies
as they seek to gain investment capital and donor community aid. CAPA believes that
financial infrastructure is just as important as physical infrastructure.”
New Zealand is recognised as one of the leaders in public sector financial reporting and
was one of the first countries to adopt accrual accounting.
Keith took over as President of CAPA at a meeting in Brisbane in September 2011.
A fellow Kiwi, Warren Allen FCA, was last year elected Deputy President of the International
Federation of Accountants.
“To see one of our own elected to the second highest position in the accounting profession
globally was quite something special. It really was a pleasure to be a Kiwi in that rather big
audience. We’re doing well in the leadership stakes,” Keith says.
Keith is also involved with the NZICA Leadership Awards as Chief Judge. “One of the things
we don’t do well, perhaps it’s a New Zealand cultural thing, is celebrate success. The awards
highlighted how outstanding some of our people are.”
He describes his family as a source of strength that enables him to pursue his work and
professional achievements.
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Kevin Simpkins FCA
Chair, External Reporting Board (XRB)

Setting new standards

Kevin Simpkins is leading a new era of standard setting in New Zealand.
Since 1 July, Kevin has headed the new XRB. It has taken over the roles of the Accounting
Standards Review Board, which he previously chaired, and of two NZICA Boards, the
Financial Reporting Standards Board and the Professional Standards Board.
He puts the smooth transition down to teamwork.
“There has been a very constructive and professional working relationship with NZICA and
the previous Boards. The staff of the accounting and auditing standards areas of NZICA
have been outstanding.
“We’ve worked closely with the Ministry of Economic Development as the changes were
designed and had excellent working relationships with them as well. Finally my own Board
and our small support team have shown great wisdom in responding to every new challenge.
“It’s a significant honour for me to have been asked to lead standard setting in New Zealand.”
NZICA, which handed over work it has been doing for decades to the new body, supported
the change.
One of the XRB’s objectives is to maintain stability in the financial reporting environment
during the reform. It will also work to build confidence in the financial reporting and
auditing requirements from the new body.
The change adds to the international credibility of the standard-setting arrangements
in NZ, with standards now set independently of the accounting profession, and NZICA
members being the primary deliverers of auditing and assurance services.
His other responsibilities include work as an Adjunct Professor in the School of Accounting
and Commercial Law at Victoria University.
“I learn an enormous amount from the next generation of accountants who are my
students. I often feel like I’m the student – they have insights and observations that
challenge and inspire me.”
He is grateful for the career path he chose. “Being a Chartered Accountant and a member
of NZICA has created the stepping off point for a raft of wonderful opportunities and many
great friendships.”
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Liz’e Marett CA
Regional Controller, Astellas Pharma Europe Limited, London

Streets of London

Liz’e Marett is one of many Kiwi CAs who have discovered their qualification is a boon
when seeking work overseas.
She has secured the role of Regional Controller with Astellas Pharma Europe Ltd, a major
Japanese pharmaceutical company.
“The NZICA qualification is definitely recognised over here in the UK,” she says.
“However, I still have debates with my English and Aussie workmates about whose
qualification is superior and this often leads to a good laugh.”
Accounting was a late career choice for Liz’e, who studied physical education at university.
She added accounting papers on to that degree to ensure good career prospects – backed
by a family history in accounting. “I thought how bad could it be if my grandfather did it all
his life and my mother choose to do it later in life. Accounting can’t be all that bad.”
She moved to the UK to further her career prospects and has found that London can be a
fun city to live in.
“The main reason I came to the UK was for the opportunities that the UK provides. But you
can’t complain about the travel, money, life experiences and the access to a large number
of pubs that comes with it.
“I have had so many great experiences in the past year it is very hard to choose. Two that
really stand out for me are travelling to Morocco with a couple of great mates, and cycling
into Paris from London with a fantastic group of people to be greeted by the Eiffel Tower.
“Professionally being believed in and given the opportunity to take on a new role, that has
been both challenging and more business focused, has been real a highlight.”
Life is good and Liz’e expects the New Year to bring more opportunities, both personally
and professionally.
“I know I should stay here settling down, looking after myself and socialising less, but in
reality that’s not going to happen anytime soon! I don’t like to have too many plans, as it
makes life a bit boring if you know what is going to happen.
“I do, however, intend to go home, meet my new nephew and catch up with family and
friends, finish my postgraduate diploma in marketing, establish more good working
relationships, perfect my dodgeball skills, do a cycle ride in Europe, maybe Italy or Croatia,
work hard and make the most of the opportunities here in the UK.”
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Warren Johnstone CA
Managing Partner, BDO Christchurch
Chair, Christchurch Response Focus Group

Leadership in times of crisis

The worst times are the most critical times for leaders to step up, as the colleagues of
BDO Christchurch Managing Partner, Warren Johnstone, will attest.
Warren was given the task of leading the recovery effort for BDO’s Christchurch office.
The office was so badly damaged in the 22 February earthquake that it was listed among
the seven most critical buildings. But careful checks that day revealed all staff were safe.
“I was so relieved knowing that my staff and family were all safe. It was chaos and surreal
because half of Christchurch was severely affected.”
BDO had prepared a recovery plan after the quake in September 2010, but the February
event caused far more devastation and left 181 dead. The quake was one of the worst
natural disasters to strike New Zealand and its impact will last for years.
“It’s been really crucial to get business firmly back on its feet. Staff are focusing again on
clients and working well under the new normal,” Warren says.
The impact of the quake on staff was taxing and trauma counsellors were brought in to
work with them.
“We spent a lot of time talking as a group to see that everybody was okay. An event like
this makes you focus on what’s important and it becomes apparent that your team, and
some clients, become like family.”
His leadership capability was called upon to chair a special earthquake recovery Focus
Group made up of Christchurch business leaders, put together by NZICA and the New
Zealand Law Society. This Focus Group has been pivotal to guiding design and recovery
activity for some 4,200 NZICA and New Zealand Law Society members in Christchurch.
Warren has been on the Board of St Bedes College for three years and is in his second term.
The school also faced issues from the earthquake with international students leaving and
damage to buildings, including the school chapel, which will be expensive to repair.
“I believe that professional people like Chartered Accountants, lawyers, engineers and
doctors should give back to their community.”
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Yan Xu CA and Reon Krishna CA
Management Accountant and Senior Financial Accountant
Fletcher Construction and Fletcher Building

Husband and wife

Yan Xu CA and Reon Krishna CA studied together, graduated together and now share their
lives as husband and wife.
Their interest in accounting has taken them from academic achievement to the altar, and
in May they joined the CA college at the same time.
They met as second year students when Yan needed help in the library with a question.
Reon had his own question: was she single?
The years of study were made easier as they shared the same demanding routine, and they
motivated each other to get through the process to become Chartered Accountants.
“You kind of disappear off the radar when you’re working towards PAS and PCE2, and that
can be hard for some people to understand,” Reon says.
Now married, the couple have seen their interests take another shared turn.
Both have ended up working for subsidiaries of the same parent company – Fletcher
Building – and say they enjoy the variety and challenges of their work.
“Every day can be different and exciting. And the company is New Zealand-owned –
something that is important for us,” says Yan.
Working for the same company has other advantages. “We have the same reporting
timing, so we’re generally busy at the same time,” says Reon.
Becoming Chartered Accountants has opened up more opportunities. In future, they may
consider going into business although they are happy where they are now.
With a bit more time to relax, they are more able to meet with friends and enjoy
sporting activities.
The outdoors is special to them for another reason – Reon proposed while they were on a
holiday in Queenstown.
From a chance encounter years earlier, the couple now have a work/life balance that works
for them.
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Members in Christchurch
NZICA moved quickly to support members and staff following the deadly February earthquake
in Christchurch. Following the immediate response a programme of business health checks
was conducted with 35 firms previously located in the CBD. Each had up to 12 staff.
Some firms were operating from owners’ homes, and were yet to decide whether to return
to the CBD or relocate elsewhere in the city. Most firms took advantage of the Government
Employee Subsidy Scheme to keep their businesses afloat. Overwhelmingly, the Chartered
Accountancy practices did whatever it took to look after their staff and clients.
At the time of assessment in May, feedback from the firms suggested the business outlook
was improving, and many firms were considering hiring more staff. The need for more staff
arose from firms trying to catch up on lost work time and client demand for help with
insurance claims.
A key lesson from the quake was the need for robust computer back-up. The recovery for many was
delayed as they waited for permission to enter the ‘red zone’ to retrieve their computer servers.
Gaining entry to buildings to get at least the bare
essentials, like office records and electronic files, has
been frustrating for many businesses and costly too
for some, but it’s a great help that most have now had
limited access to their offices.
Insurance matters are outstanding for many Chartered
Accountancy businesses and relate to material damage
and business interruption claims.

Members brainstorm at the NZICA Response and Rebuild Forum,
held in Christchurch in March

In memorial

NZICA acknowledges the untimely loss of six members in the Christchurch earthquake.
Carey Bird CA
Helen Chambers CA
Philip McDonald CA
Blair O’Connor CA
Deborah Roberts AT
Emma Shaharudin ACA
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Advisory Groups formed

Following the Fit for the Future 2 review in 2010, NZICA established a number of Advisory Groups.

OUR MEMBERS

Advising NZICA

Staffed by members, all volunteers, the Advisory Groups provide technical expertise in
specific areas or representation of member views and interests across particular sectors. Each
group comprises NZICA members and in a few cases non-members to provide an external
perspective or to bring specific expertise.

Public Sector Advisory Group
Marc Warner CA
Chair

Deputy Chief Executive – People, Capability and Resources,
Ministry of Social Development, Wellington

Michael Beever CIMA

CFO, Statistics New Zealand, Wellington

Joe Hanita CA

Group Accountant, Te Wananga o Aotearoa, Te Awamutu

Darren Mitchell CA

CFO and Corporate Services Director, Christchurch Polytechnic
Institute of Technology

Robert Nelson CA

Financial Controller, Auckland Council

Ron Pearson CA

Finance Director, Counties-Manukau District Health Board

Scott Scoullar CA

CFO, Inland Revenue, Wellington

Wendy Venter CA

Assistant Auditor-General, Parliamentary Group,
Office of the Auditor-General, Wellington

Fergus Welsh CA

CFO and Chief Accountant, Treasury, Wellington

Phillippa Wilson CA

Corporate Services General Manager,
South Taranaki District Council

Chair – Marc Warner CA
Deputy Chief Executive – People, Capability and Resources, Ministry of Social Development
Marc joined the MSD in 2002. As part of the Ministry’s Leadership Team, he led the Value for
Money (VFM) Programme unit responsible for two separate VFM reviews to achieve financial
sustainability and to improve efficiency and effectiveness.
As Deputy Chief Executive – People, Capability and Resources, he has responsibility for IT,
Human Resources, Finance, Property and Shared Services. He is also one of four officials
supporting Cabinet’s Expenditure Control Committee.
Marc says the Public Sector group has two broad objectives. “Firstly, to focus on ensuring that
NZICA maintains its relevance and is adding value to the subset of members that works in the
wider public sector. A second objective relates to the building of capability across the public sector.”
Marc says his role as Chair is to coordinate the group’s effort and ensure it is targeted to meet
key objectives. “This must be more than a ‘talkfest’ and we will be assessed based on our results.”
“Through my role supporting the Government’s Expenditure Control Committee I can ensure
that we have access to relevant Ministers and that our efforts align with Government priorities.”
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Regional Advisory Group
Stephen Stafford-Bush FCA
Chair

Director, McConnell Stafford-Bush & Associates Ltd, Pukekohe

Rob Braithwaite CA

Partner, KPMG Hamilton

George Collier CA

Director, Ibbotson Cooney Ltd, Alexandra

Marilyn Davies CA

Principal/Director,
Busing Russell Chartered Accountants, New Plymouth

Lyall Evans CA

Partner, BDO Gisborne Limited

Chris Joblin CA

CFO, Tainui Group Holdings Ltd, Hamilton

Richard Perry CA

Chief Financial Officer, Landcorp Farming Ltd, Wellington

Rajnesh Sharma CA

Diversified Exports Manager,
Turners & Growers Fresh Ltd, Auckland

Cros Spooner CA

Chief Operating Officer, Beef + Lamb New Zealand, Wellington

Frazer Weir CA

Partner, Polson Higgs, Christchurch

Chair – Stephen Stafford-Bush FCA

Director McConnell Stafford-Bush & Associates
Stephen has been a Director at McConnell Stafford-Bush and Associates for two years
following the merger with a Pukekohe practice.
His vision for the Regional Advisory Group is to deliver the same high level of service and
support to regional practices and primary sector accountants and clients that was provided by
the Primary Sector Committee in the past.
Stephen says it is an excellent group of people with diverse experiences and strengths.
“The primary sector has some key challenges ahead including developing efficiencies in
productive capacity, solutions for volatility in returns, reliability in infrastructure.”
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Gary Swift CA
Chair

Chief Executive, Auckland Council Investments Ltd

Lynley Belton CA

General Manager, Fairfax New Zealand Ltd, Auckland

Tony Candy CA

Group Financial Controller,
Steel & Tube Holdings Ltd, Wellington

Mark Conelly CA

Chief Financial Officer, Noel Leeming Group Ltd, Auckland

Lucy Hickman CA

Finance Manager, Trade Me Limited

Craig Holloway CA

Head of Strategy Execution, Kiwibank Ltd, Lower Hutt

Tim Loan CA

General Manager – Finance,
Southland Building Society, Invercargill

Marin Matulovic FCA

Director of Finance, University of Auckland

Bevan Miller CA

Chief Financial Officer, Wakefield Health Ltd, Wellington

Jannine Mountford CA

Commercial Manager, AHI Roofing Ltd, Auckland

OUR MEMBERS

Corporate Sector Advisory Group

Chair – Gary Swift CA

Chief Executive Auckland Council Investments Ltd
Gary began his career as a Chartered Accountant working in auditing, with roles in Wellington,
London and Toronto for what is now part of Ernst & Young.
Since then, he has been the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) for a number of businesses, the
most recent being Watercare Services in Auckland. He is currently Chief Executive of Auckland
Council Investments.
Gary was a finalist for CA of the Year in 2010. He has a clear vision for the Corporate Advisory Group.
“To be regarded by the Council, Board and members as the pre-eminent group to provide
quality advice to the Board on matters affecting members in the corporate sector.”
A key challenge for the sector is ensuring the interests of corporate sector members are fully
reflected in NZICA’s activities and priorities, he says.
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Public Practice Advisory Group
Matthew Bellingham CA
Chair

Director and Chief Executive, Hayes Knight NZ, Albany

Sharon Cresswell CA

Partner, PricewaterhouseCoopers, Hamilton

Peter Guise CA

Director, Staples Rodway Ltd, Auckland

Doug Haines CA

Partner, BDO, Wellington

Stephen Lucy CA

Director, Audit New Zealand, Wellington

Baubre Murray CA

Director, Dowse Murray Chartered Accountants Ltd

Michael Rondel CA

Partner, Polson Higgs, Christchurch

Greg Sheehan CA

Director, Sheehan & Shaw Limited, Martinborough

Ann Tod CA

Partner, KPMG, Auckland

Craig Wyatt CA

Partner, Harvie Green Wyatt, Dunedin

Chair – Matthew Bellingham CA
Director and Chief Executive, Hayes Knight NZ – Albany

Matthew has only ever had one job. He started as a graduate accountant with Colson White,
based on the North Shore of Auckland. The firm merged with a Parnell-based practice to create
Hayes Knight. He became CEO in 2010.
Chairmanship of the Public Practice Advisory Group is his first role with NZICA.
Matthew’s vision is that the advisory group will represent public practitioners nationwide and
be a voice of reason and understanding for them in all dealings with NZICA.
“We are going through challenging times of great change and I believe that a membership
body should engage, assist, support and empathise with its members. This is what I see the
Public Practice Advisory Group doing through products, tools, processes and the ability to take
members’ views all the way to the Board.”
He says the key challenge for the sector is change, including changing legislation, changing
technology, rising costs, out-sourcing and possible shrinking of income from traditional services.
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Leadership Award Winners

The following members were honoured at the Leadership Awards in November 2010.

Warren Allen FCA

Life Membership

John Waller FCA

Chartered Accountant of the Year

Cassandra Crowley CA

Outstanding New Member

Emeritus Professor Bevan Clark FCA

Outstanding Service to the Profession

OUR MEMBERS

Honours

Fellowships

NZICA presents Fellowships for outstanding contributions to the accountancy profession and/
or community service. The following members were honoured at the AGM in December.
Auckland

John Wadams FCA

Marin Matulovic FCA

Bruce Hassall FCA

Simon O’Connor FCA

Geof Nightingale FCA

Stephen Stafford-Bush FCA

Geoffrey Devine FCA
Waikato/Bay of Plenty

Michelle Hill FCA

David Steele FCA

Hawke’s Bay

John Newland FCA

Victor Saywell FCA

Kerry Marshall FCA
Manawatu

Richard Cooke FCA

Wellington

Carolyn Cordery FCA

Martin Matthews FCA

Jim Gordon FCA

Martin Scott FCA

John Nash FCA

Tom Davies FCA

Marlborough/Nelson

Robert Shore FCA

Canterbury/Westland

Beverley Lord FCA

Philip Keeling ATF

Graham Kennedy FCA

Richard Austin FCA

Otago

Phillip Cullen FCA

Phillip Trounson FCA

Southland

Graham Dick FCA

Roger Wilson FCA

Sydney

Steven McDonnell FCA

United Kingdom

Peter Flamank FCA
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Honours

Eight members were recognised in the New Year’s or Queen’s Birthday Honours in 2011.
Officer of The NZ Order of Merit

David Mace FCA
Derek Anderson CA (Honorary Retired)
Andrew Davidson ACA

Member of The NZ Order of Merit

Robert Briant FCA (Honorary Retired)
James Law CA (Retired)
Stephen Hamilton CA
Roger Taylor CA

Queen’s Service Medal

Henry (Harry) Cranefield CA (Retired)

Life Members

NZICA’s highest honour is presented in recognition of professional achievements or
contributions to the accounting profession. The honour has been bestowed on 41 members
over NZICA’s 103-year history. Ten people currently hold Life Memberships.
Member
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Awarded

Warren Allen FCA

2010

John Hagen FCA

2005

David Emanuel FCA

2004

Don Trow FCA

2003

Michael Fenton FCA

2002

Tony Frankham FCA

2002

Peter Hays FCA

1999

Frank Devonport FCA (Hon Retired)

1995

Athol Mann FCA (Hon Retired)

1991

Malcolm McCaw FCA (Hon Retired)

1991
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Statutory authority

NZICA was established in 1908. It operates under the New Zealand Institute of Chartered
Accountants Act 1996 (the Act), which formalises NZICA’s role as a regulatory body with
responsibility for the accountancy profession in New Zealand. The functions of NZICA as
described in Section 5 of the Act are:
•
•
•
•

GOVERNANCE

Governance

to promote quality, expertise and integrity in the profession of accountancy by its
members in New Zealand

to promote, control and regulate the profession of accountancy by its members in
New Zealand

to promote the training, education and examination of persons practising, or intending
to practise, the profession of accountancy in New Zealand or elsewhere
any other functions that are conferred on it by the Rules.

NZICA Rules

NZICA’s Rules are key in regulating NZICA’s governance, quality assurance, conduct functions
and aspects of general operation. The Rules specify policy and procedures around:
•

Council, Board and committee operations

•

conduct

•
•
•
•
•

membership categories and requirements
public practice

practice review
branches

meetings of members.

Amendments to the Rules are authorised either through member vote at an annual or special
general meeting or, for some Rules, by Council or Board.

Code of Ethics

Section 7 of the Act requires NZICA to “always have a Code of Ethics that governs the
professional conduct of its members”. The Code sets out fundamental principles and provides
guidance on professional conduct needed to sustain public confidence in the profession, and
is a positive point of difference between NZICA members and other accountants. Compliance
with the Code is mandatory for all NZICA members. Members must be able to demonstrate
at all times that their actions, behaviour and conduct comply with the terms and spirit of the
Code. Non-compliance with the Code of Ethics may expose a member to disciplinary action.
The Code of Ethics is based on the following five fundamental principles.
•
•

Integrity – members must behave with integrity in all professional and business
relationships. Integrity implies not merely honesty but fair dealing and truthfulness.

Objectivity and independence – members must be fair, impartial and intellectually honest,
and must not allow prejudice or bias, conflict of interest or influence of others to override
objectivity. Members undertaking certain types of engagements must be, and be seen to
be, independent.
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•

•

•

Competence – members must only undertake professional work in which they have
the competence necessary to perform the work to the technical and professional
standards expected.

Quality performance – members must perform their professional work with due care and
diligence, ensuring that all professional obligations are completed in a timely manner
and are carried out in accordance with the relevant technical and professional standards
appropriate to that work.
Professional behaviour – members must act in a manner consistent with the good
reputation of the profession and refrain from any conduct which might bring discredit to
the profession.

Effective governance – performance expectations

NZICA has a well developed Governance Manual for Council, Board and the Nominations &
Governance Committee; it has a full induction programme for new members to governance
bodies; and has a comprehensive performance evaluation process for the governance bodies
within NZICA and individual members on those bodies.

Indemnity

All members of NZICA’s governance bodies are fully indemnified by NZICA against all costs,
expenses and liabilities incurred in the due conduct of duties or engagement, unless incurred
as a result of a wilful act, default or neglect.

Conflicts of interest

The general principle is that a member of a governance body must not allow personal interests
or the interests of an associated person to conflict with the interests of NZICA. A member
of a governance body must not take improper advantage of their position, including use of
privileged information, to gain (directly or indirectly) a personal advantage or an advantage for
any associated person, which might cause detriment to NZICA.

Place of business

NZICA’s principal place of business is its national office at 50 Customhouse Quay, Wellington.
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The functions of the Council are to:
•

develop and approve NZICA’s long-term strategic intent and governance principles

•

provide input to the Board on key policy issues that will significantly impact on members

•
•
•
•
•
•

GOVERNANCE

Council
develop and approve, with the Board, NZICA’s strategic plan

appoint and evaluate the Board and approve remuneration levels for Board members
appoint and evaluate the Nominations & Governance Committee
elect the President and Vice President

confer Life Memberships and Fellowships

represent the interests of NZICA’s membership as a whole.

The Council comprises the President, Vice President, 19 elected Councillors and up to six
appointed Councillors (a combination of geographically elected and appointed to balance
branch, sector, demographic and skills representation).

2010/2011 Council

Ross Jackson FCA, President, Southland (elected December 2010)

Richard Austin FCA, Vice President, Canterbury/Westland (elected December 2010)
John Apanowicz CA, Wellington
John Bennett FCA, Manawatu

Sharon Cooke FCA, Canterbury

Richard Dey CA, Coastal Bay of Plenty
Andrew Dick CA, Auckland

Graham Edwards FCA, Hawke’s Bay
Grant Ellis CA, Auckland

Catherine Gillies CA, Gisborne/East Coast
Peter Hanson CA, Sydney Branch
Fred Hutchings FCA, Wellington
Laurie Jordan FCA, Taranaki

Ian Leggett FCA, UK Branch

Don MacKenzie CA, Canterbury
Rob McDonald CA, Auckland

Rex McKinnon FCA, Wanganui
Anne Marett CA, Canterbury
Kevin Murphy CA, Taranaki

Baubre Murray CA, Wellington
Chris Pool CA, Northland

Andrew Robinson FCA, UK Branch (alternate)
Murray Taylor ACA, Auckland
Susan Tremlett CA, Auckland

Stephen Walker CA, Wellington
Grant Wilson CA, Nelson
Craig Wyatt CA, Otago

See page 5 for an image of the 2010/2011 Council
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The following Councillors resigned at the 2010 Annual General Meeting
Dinu Harry FCA, President, Auckland
John Murray CA, Nelson Marlborough
Peter Schuyt CA, Wellington (resigned effective 14 Oct, 2010)
Giles Ellis CA, Auckland

Council meetings

22 July 2010, 30 November 2010, 1 December 2010, 9 February 2011, 29 June 2011, 30 June 2011
( joint strategy session)
Meeting date

58

Attended

Apologies

22 July 2010

23

3

30 November 2010

25

0

1 December 2010 (AGM)

24

1

9 February 2011

23

3

29 June 2011

23

3

30 June 2011 ( joint Board/Council strategy session)

22

4
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The functions of the Board are to:
•

act as the Executive Board of NZICA

•

develop and approve, with the Council, NZICA’s strategic plan

•
•
•
•
•

GOVERNANCE

Board
carry out the functions of NZICA

be responsible for developing, approving, implementing and monitoring the other strategic
and operational plans and policies of NZICA
appoint, authorise delegations for, oversee, and direct all permanent bodies, national
committees, and other committees, boards and tribunals of NZICA

appoint and monitor performance of the Chief Executive and authorise delegations to the
Chief Executive
be responsible for the financial affairs of NZICA and approve the annual plan and budget.

The Board has a close working relationship with Council and the Chief Executive in carrying
out its functions. The Board meets approximately eight times a year. It comprises six persons
who are members of NZICA and two persons who are not members.
The President, the Vice President and the Chief Executive are ex-officio members of the Board,
with speaking but not voting rights.

2010/11 Board

Graham Crombie FCA (Chair)
Liz Hickey FCA
Murray Jack CA
Doug McKay
Allan Newman FCA
Craig Norgate CA
Neil Paviour-Smith CA
Hugh Rennie QC

Ex-officio members of the Board
Ross Jackson FCA (appointed President December 2010)
Richard Austin FCA (appointed Vice President December 2010)
Dinu Harry FCA (retired President December 2010)
Terry McLaughlin FCA, Chief Executive
See page 10 for further details about NZICA’s Board members
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Board meeting dates

Eight Board meetings were held on the following dates: 23 July 2010, 30 August 2010,
11 October 2010, 2 December 2010, 7 February 2011, 17 March 2011, 28 April 2011 and 30 June 2011.
Member

60

Meetings

Attended

Graham Crombie FCA

8

8

Liz Hickey FCA

8

8

Murray Jack CA

8

8

Doug McKay

8

8

Allan Newman FCA

8

8

Craig Norgate CA

8

8

Neil Paviour-Smith CA

8

7

Hugh Rennie QC

8

8

Richard Austin FCA

4

3

Dinu Harry FCA

4

3

Ross Jackson FCA

8

8

Terry McLaughlin FCA

8

8
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The Nominations & Governance Committee (N&G) comprises the President, the Board Chair
and up to four others including a non-member of NZICA.

GOVERNANCE

Nominations & Governance Committee
The functions of the N&G Committee are to:
•

•
•
•
•

identify and recommend candidates to the Council for appointment to the Board and the
Council, and liaise with the Board regarding candidates for permanent bodies and other
committees of NZICA

develop skills matrices, selection criteria, succession plans, codes of conduct, training, and any
other requirements for the Board, Council, permanent bodies and other committees of NZICA
recommend to Council remuneration levels for the President, Vice President and Board members

facilitate the evaluation of the Council, the Board and the Nominations & Governance Committee
monitor and evaluate governance processes between the Council, the Board, management,
and the Nominations & Governance Committee.

N&G Committee

Tony Burn FCA (Chair), Nicki Crauford, Peter Gulliver CA, Susie Johnstone FCA, Ross Jackson FCA,
Graham Crombie FCA
N&G Committee meeting dates

Three meetings were held on the following dates: 25 August 2010, 14 October 2010 and 11 April 2011.
Member

Meetings

Attended

Tony Burn FCA (Chair)

3

3

Graham Crombie FCA

3

3

Nicki Crauford

3

2

Peter Gulliver CA

3

3

Dinu Harry FCA (Pres*)

2

2

Warren Allen FCA *

2

2

Ross Jackson FCA (Pres**)

1

1

Susie Johnstone FCA **

1

1

* (end of term November 2010)
** (beginning of term December 2010)

Report from the N&G Committee Chair, Tony Burn FCA

During this financial year we farewelled Warren Allen FCA and welcomed Susie Johnstone FCA,
from Balclutha, to the N&G Committee. It is important to especially acknowledge Warren’s
contribution to N&G as we have worked to carry out our obligations. Warren’s significant
knowledge and familiarity from his similar work with IFAC has been invaluable in
implementing the Fit for the Future Phase 1 (F4F1) changes.
The key role of N&G is to ensure that there is sufficient talent available for governance roles
within NZICA and to ensure the effectiveness of NZICA’s governance. In our second year of
operation we have focused on process improvement, to ensure that NZICA’s governance
processes are in line with best practice.
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This year we have:
•
•

•
•

•

•

recommended to Council four appointed Councillors, with an excellent calibre of
candidates expressing an interest to be involved in the governance of NZICA

re-appointed two members of the Board for a second term; the calibre of the Board is
impressive, they are doing an excellent job and are all keen to continue in their roles which
is a true reflection of the value that they see in being on the NZICA Board
recommended to Council a replacement for Warren Allen on the N&G Committee itself,
again we had an excellent calibre of candidates to choose from

recommended remuneration levels for President and Vice President and Board members
for the 2011 year, which included a reduction in remuneration of the President to recognise
the change in role with the F4F1 changes
conducted the first performance evaluation process for the Board, Council and N&G
Committee, with an action plan for development in some areas agreed by the President
and Chairs of the respective bodies

reviewed NZICA’s governance processes and identified some minor areas for improvement.

In achieving these outcomes, consideration was given to ensuring there existed a competency
framework for Councillors and Board members, an appropriate balance within each group,
an appropriate level of continuity of knowledge, and ensuring there would be an appropriate
rotation cycle for membership on the governance bodies.

Audit, Finance & Risk Management Committee
The Audit, Finance & Risk Management Committee (AFRM) ensures risks are defined and
analysed, and adequately managed.
Current AFRM Committee Members

Hugh Rennie QC (Chair), Liz Hickey FCA and Neil Paviour-Smith CA
Meeting Dates

24 September 2010, 24 November 2010, 10 March 2011 and 20 April 2011
Member

Meetings

Attended

Hugh Rennie QC (Chair)

4

4

Liz Hickey FCA *

3

3

Neil Paviour-Smith CA *

3

3

Ross Jackson FCA ***

2

2

Murray Jack CA **

1

1

*(appointed effective 1 October 2010)
**(resigned effective 30 September 2010)
***(resigned effective 31 December 2010)

62

2011 ANNUAL REPORT New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants

The Board of the New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants (NZICA) has delegated
to the Nominations Committee (the Committee) its responsibilities and role in respect of
appointments, delegations, and oversight of national committees, and other committees,
boards and tribunals of NZICA.

GOVERNANCE

Nominations Committee

Current Committee Members

Allan Newman FCA (Chair), Graham Crombie FCA, Liz Hickey FCA
Meeting Dates

26 November 2010, 15 April 2011, and 7 June 2011
Member

Meetings

Attended

Allan Newman FCA (Chair)

3

2

Graham Crombie FCA

3

3

Liz Hickey FCA

3

3

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee sets and reviews the performance of the Chief Executive and
sets the remuneration of the Chief Executive and his direct reports.
Current Committee Members

Graham Crombie FCA (Chair), Doug McKay, Craig Norgate CA
Meeting dates

The Remuneration Committee met on 18 August 2010 and 8 March 2011.
Member

Meetings

Attended

Graham Crombie FCA (Chair)

2

2

Doug McKay

2

2

Craig Norgate CA

2

2
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
in thousands of New Zealand dollars

Revenue

Note

Parent
2011

Parent
2010

Group
2011

Group
2010

1

31,940

28,677

35,118

33,299

12,789

11,262

13,138

11,979

Expenses
Employee benefits
Depreciation

9

998

651

998

651

Amortisation

10

368

201

407

252

Other expenses

2

17,911

15,223

19,789

18,849

32,066

27,337

34,332

31,731

(126)

1,340

786

1,568

-

-

-

-

(126)

1,340

786

1,568

Cash flow hedge taken to
reserves gain/(loss)

-

23

-

23

Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income

-

-

-

-

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

-

23

-

23

(126)

1,363

786

1,591

Total expenses

Surplus/(deficit) before income tax

Income tax (benefit)/expense

3

Surplus/(deficit) after income tax

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the period

The accompanying notes form part of, and are to be read in conjunction with, these financial statements.
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Statement of changes in members’ funds
For the year ended 30 June 2011
in thousands of New Zealand dollars

Parent

Note

Cash flow
hedge
reserve

NZICA
members’
funds

Special
interest
groups’ funds

Total
members’
funds

(23)

5,472

190

5,639

-

1,331

9

1,340

Other comprehensive income

23

-

-

23

Total comprehensive income

23

1,331

9

1,363

-

6,803

199

7,002

6,803

199

7,002

Balance at 1 July 2009
Surplus for the year

Balance at 30 June 2010

Balance at 1 July 2010
Surplus/(deficit) for the year

-

(233)

107

(126)

Other comprehensive income

-

-

-

-

Total comprehensive income

-

(233)

107

(126)

ABEL amalgamation

-

3,168

-

3,168

-

9,738

306

10,044

Cash flow
hedge
reserve

NZICA
members’
funds

Special
interest
groups’ funds

Total
members’
funds

(23)

7,500

190

7,667

-

1,559

9

1,568

Other comprehensive income

23

-

-

23

Total comprehensive income

23

1,559

9

1,591

-

9,059

199

9,258

9,059

199

9,258

Balance at 30 June 2011

16

Group

Balance at 1 July 2009
Surplus for the year

Balance at 30 June 2010

Balance at 1 July 2010
Surplus for the year

-

679

107

786

Other comprehensive income

-

-

-

-

Total comprehensive income

-

679

107

786

-

9,738

306

10,044

Balance at 30 June 2011

16

The accompanying notes form part of, and are to be read in conjunction with, these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
in thousands of New Zealand dollars

Note

Parent
2011

Parent
2010

Group
2011

Group
2010

Cash and cash equivalents

4

4,468

3,826

4,468

4,322

Investments

5

5,167

6,088

5,167

6,088

Trade and other receivables

6

1,413

1,240

1,413

1,509

Income tax receivable

7

3

3

3

9

Inventories

8

20

5

20

15

11,071

11,162

11,071

11,943

Assets

Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment

9

6,076

6,272

6,076

6,272

Intangible assets

10

905

688

905

727

Investment in subsidiary

11

-

250

-

-

6,981

7,210

6,981

6,999

18,052

18,372

18,052

18,942

Total non-current assets
Total assets

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 30 June 2011

Liabilities
Trade and other payables and liabilities

12

2,619

2,679

2,619

3,014

Employee benefits

13

1,146

981

1,146

981

3,481

2,316

3,481

4,895

Income in advance
Funds held on deposit for subsidiary

20

-

4,600

-

-

Provisions

15

-

-

-

-

7,246

10,576

7,246

8,890

Total current liabilities
Trade and other payables and liabilities

12

730

769

730

769

Employee benefits

13

32

25

32

25

762

794

762

794

8,008

11,370

8,008

9,684

9,738

6,803

9,738

9,059

306

199

306

199

10,044

7,002

10,044

9,258

18,052

18,372

18,052

18,942

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Members’ funds
NZICA members’ funds
Special interest groups’ funds
Total members’ funds

16

Total members’ funds and liabilities
For and on behalf of the Board

Graham Crombie FCA – Chair
Date: 29 September 2011

Elizabeth Hickey FCA – Director
Date: 29 September 2011

The accompanying notes form part of, and are to be read in conjunction with, these financial statements.
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Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 30 June 2011
in thousands of New Zealand dollars

Note

Parent
2011

Parent
2010

Group
2011

Group
2010

19,018

19,423

19,018

19,423

Cash receipts from professional development

7,461

3,332

8,628

8,510

Cash receipts from other

5,126

5,260

5,126

5,260

Cash paid to suppliers

(17,330)

(14,814)

(19,348)

(18,737)

Cash paid to employees

(12,617)

(10,441)

(12,966)

(10,958)

575

423

669

612

-

294

6

322

(106)

(213)

(25)

(247)

2,127

3,264

1,108

4,185

24,125

27,006

24,125

27,006

500

4,100

-

-

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

(995)

(4,318)

(995)

(4,318)

Acquisition of intangible assets

(888)

(399)

(888)

(434)

(23,204)

(27,051)

(23,204)

(27,051)

-

700

-

-

(1,300)

(3,800)

-

-

277

-

-

-

(1,485)

(3,762)

(962)

(4,797)

642

(498)

146

(612)

-

25

-

25

3,826

4,299

4,322

4,909

4,468

3,826

4,468

4,322

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from subscription
and application fees

Interest received
Income tax received
Net goods and services tax paid
Net cash flows from operating activities

17

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from maturity of investments
Deposits received from ABEL

Acquisition of investments
Dividend received
Return of investment funds to ABEL
ABEL cash acquired on amalgamation
Net cash flows used in investing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Net foreign exchange differences
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

4

The accompanying notes form part of, and are to be read in conjunction with, these financial statements.
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Significant accounting policies
(a) Reporting entity

The New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants (NZICA) is a statutory entity constituted
under the New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants Act 1996. NZICA is domiciled
in New Zealand. NZICA represents the interests of members of the accounting profession
working in New Zealand and around the world.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NZICA is a public benefit entity, as defined under NZ IAS 1.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board on 29 September 2011.

(b) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice in New Zealand (NZ GAAP). They comply with New Zealand equivalents to International
Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS), and other applicable Financial Reporting Standards,
as appropriate for public benefit entities.

(c) Basis of preparation

The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars (NZD), which is the functional
and presentation currency of NZICA, rounded to the nearest thousand. The financial
statements are prepared on the historical cost basis.
The accounting policies, except as outlined below under new accounting standards and
interpretations, have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements. Any exceptions are outlined under part (u) of these accounting policies for new
accounting policies and interpretations.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with NZ IFRS requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of NZ IFRS that have significant effect
on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the
next year are discussed in note 25.

(d) Basis for consolidation

Subsidiary
A subsidiary is an entity controlled by NZICA. Control exists when NZICA has the power, directly
or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable or
convertible are taken into account. The financial statements of the subsidiary are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control starts until the date that control ends.
Corresponding assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses are added together on a line by line basis.
On 1 January 2011 the Parent purchased the business of its wholly-owned subsidiary, ABEL.
The financial statements of ABEL are included in the Group financial statements and also form
part of the Parent financial statements for the period 1 January 2011 to 30 June 2011.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Significant Accounting Policies

In the prior year Parent financial statements the investment in ABEL is stated at cost.
At 30 June 2011 there is no longer any investment in ABEL between Parent and Group as the
subsidiary was voluntarily liquidated by the Parent. Both entities share a 30 June balance date.

(e) Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the date of
the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at balance date
are translated to NZD at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences
arising on translation are recognised in the surplus or deficit unless the relevant instrument is
designated in a hedge relationship (refer (s) below).

(f) Property, plant and equipment

Classes of property, plant and equipment
The major classes of property, plant and equipment are as follows:
• Computer equipment
• Equipment general

• Furniture and fittings
• Leasehold alterations
• Library

• Motor vehicles
Owned assets
All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.
Disposal of property, plant and equipment
Where an item of property, plant and equipment is disposed of, the gain or loss recognised in
the surplus or deficit is calculated as the difference between the net sales price and the carrying
amount of the asset.
Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent costs are added to the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment when
that cost is incurred if it is probable that the service potential or future economic benefits embodied
within the new item will flow to the Group. All other costs are recognised in the surplus or deficit.
Depreciation
Depreciation is charged to the surplus or deficit using the straight-line method. Depreciation is
set at rates that will write-off the cost of the assets, less their estimated residual values, over their
useful lives (or for leasehold alteration assets, the shorter of useful lives and the term of the lease).
The estimated useful lives of major classes of assets are as follows:
Class of asset

Estimated life

• Equipment general

3 to 5 years

• Computer equipment
• Furniture and fittings
• Leasehold alterations
• Library

• Motor vehicles
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Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual value of assets are reassessed at balance date.
Depreciation of assets which are constructed or developed over a period of time does not
commence until the asset is available for use.

(g) Intangible assets

Software
Software applications that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Research and development
Research costs
Research costs are recognised as an expense in the surplus or deficit when incurred.

Development costs
Development costs are incurred as part of ongoing improvement to the assessment of
professional competency for intending members of NZICA. Development expenditure in
relation to new or improved services and products is recognised as an asset. This is stated
at cost and amortised over the period of expected benefits in a manner consistent with the
consumption of benefits, not exceeding five years. All other development expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the surplus or deficit as incurred.
Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalised only when it increases the service
potential or future economic benefits embodied in the related specific asset. All other expenditure
is expensed as incurred through the surplus or deficit.
Amortisation
Amortisation is charged to the surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of intangible assets. Amortisation of assets which are constructed or developed
over a period of time does not commence until the asset is available for use. The estimated
useful lives are as follows:
Estimated life
Type of asset
3 to 5 years
• Software
• Development costs
3 to 5 years

(h) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less impairment losses. Trade and
other receivables are regarded as impaired when they exceed 90 days. Impairment of other
receivables past due is established on individual assessment of receivables. The likelihood
of recoverability is based on correspondence, existence of payment plans and historical
loss experience. Bad debts are written off during the period in which they are identified.

(i) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses. Cost is based on a first in first out basis.

( j) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances, call deposits and deposits with a maturity
of no more than three months from the date of inception.
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(k) Investments

Investments comprise fixed term deposits with registered banks. All investments have a maturity
date of greater than three months at inception and are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less impairment.

(l) Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed at each balance date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable
amounts are estimated. If the estimated recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying
amount, the asset is written down to its estimated recoverable amount and an impairment loss is
recognised in the surplus or deficit.

Calculation of recoverable amount
The estimated recoverable amount of receivables and investments carried at amortised cost is
calculated as the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at their original effective
interest rate. Receivables with a short duration are not discounted.
The estimated recoverable amount of non-financial assets is the greater of their fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is calculated differently depending on whether an asset
generates cash or not. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

For non-cash-generating assets that are not part of a cash-generating unit, value in use is based on
depreciated replacement cost. For cash-generating assets, value in use is determined by estimating
future cash flows from the use and ultimate disposal of the asset and discounting these to present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market rates and the risks specific to the asset.

Reversals of impairment
Impairment losses for non-financial assets are reversed when there is a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. Impairment losses for financial assets are reversed
when the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised. All impairment losses are reversed through the surplus or deficit.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

(m) Employee benefits

Annual leave
Annual leave liabilities are short-term obligations and are calculated on an accrual basis at the
amount the Group expects to pay. The Group accrues the obligation for paid absences when the
obligation relates to employees’ past services.

Long-service leave
The Group’s net obligation for long-service leave is the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. The obligation is calculated using
the projected unit credit method and is discounted to present value. The discount rate is the market
yield on relevant New Zealand government bonds at balance date.

(n) Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of
the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
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cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market rates and, where appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability.

(o) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method and due to their short-term nature are
not discounted.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(p) Income tax

Income tax in the surplus or deficit for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
is recognised in the surplus or deficit except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in members’ funds, in which case it is recognised in members’ funds.
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at balance date, and any adjustment to tax payable for previous years.

The Group is only liable for income tax relating to members’ activities where a clear service
or good has been provided. However, subscription income is not liable for income tax. Also,
income tax is payable on any services or goods provided to non-members and interest revenue
earned on investments. Income tax expense is recognised on the operating surplus derived
from these activities, before taxation, adjusted for permanent differences between assessable
and accounting income.
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at balance date. A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable surpluses will be available against which the asset can
be used. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realised.

(q) Goods and services tax

The Statement of Comprehensive Income and Statement of Cash Flows have been prepared on
a Goods and Services Tax (GST) exclusive basis. All items in the Statement of Financial Position
are stated net of GST with the exception of accounts receivable and payable, which include
GST invoiced. Where GST is irrecoverable as an input tax, it is recognised as part of the related
asset or expense.

(r) Revenue recognition

Subscriptions
The Group’s membership subscription year is 1 July to 30 June. Subscriptions are receivable in
advance but only those subscription receipts which are attributable to the current financial
year are recognised as revenue.
Professional competency course fees
Competency course programmes are provided for intending members of NZICA. Course fees
are receivable in advance and income is recognised as the course programme is delivered.
Professional development
NZICA provides professional development courses for members and non-members.
Course fees are receivable in advance and income is recognised upon delivery of the course.
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Practice review fees
NZICA is responsible for reviewing each member practitioner to ensure that the quality of the
practice’s work meets legislative, financial reporting and professional standards requirements.
Income from these reviews is recognised as the review progresses.

Journal revenue
NZICA produces the Chartered Accountants Journal and receives income from advertising and
non-member subscriptions. Advertising revenue is recognised as each edition is published.
Non-member subscriptions are receivable in advance and income is recognised over the
subscription period.

Partnership Programme and sponsorship
The Partnership Programme allows for businesses, in exchange for marketing and sponsorship
funding, to align themselves with NZICA to provide benefits to the Group and members.
All revenue from the Partnership Programme is used by the Group according to the contractual
arrangements of the individual partners. This funding is recognised as revenue over the period
of the programme as specified in the individual contracts.
Other revenue-generating activities
Other revenue-generating activities include hiring out conference centre facilities, sale of
publications and entrance fees. Revenue from such services is recognised in the surplus or
deficit in proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction at balance date.
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

Other funding
The Group received funding for specific activities from the following sources:
• The Winton Bear deposit

• Accounting Standards Review Board.

The Winton Bear deposit was a donation from the late Mr Winton Bear. The interest earned on
the deposit must be used to promote taxation education, including updating taxation material
contained in NZICA’s library.
The Accounting Standards Review Board provides funding to assist in the development of
New Zealand accounting standards by the Financial Reporting Standards Board. This funding
is recognised by the Group as services are delivered as specified in the service agreement.
From 1 July 2011 NZICA will no longer provide this service and therefore no funding will be
obtained going forward.

Donated services recognition
The work of NZICA is dependent on the voluntary services of many members. Due to the difficulty
in determining their value with sufficient reliability, donated services are not recognised in these
financial statements.

(s) Cash flow hedges

NZICA may, from time to time, elect to hedge highly probable foreign currency denominated
expenses which are payable in future accounting periods. The financial instruments used for
hedging consist of foreign currency bank balances. These are initially valued at fair value and
subsequently revalued at the market rates prevailing at balance date. The resulting gain or loss
is reflected in the cash flow hedge reserve within members’ funds, to the extent that the hedge
is effective and is a designated hedging relationship. To the extent that the hedge is ineffective,
changes in fair value are recognised in the surplus or deficit.
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If a hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, expires or is
otherwise terminated then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. The cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in equity remains there until the forecast transaction occurs;
when any differences are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

(t) Capital management

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

NZICA’s capital is its members’ funds, which comprise accumulated surpluses. NZICA manages
its revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments, and general financial dealings prudently
and in a manner that promotes the current and future interests of its members. Members’
funds are largely managed as a by-product of managing revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities,
investments, and general financial dealings. NZICA has no externally imposed capital
management requirements.

(u) New accounting standards and interpretations

Changes in accounting policy and disclosure
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except
as follows. The Group has adopted the following new and amended New Zealand Equivalents to
International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS) and Interpretations as of 1 July 2010:

Improvements to NZ IFRSs – amendments to NZ IFRS arising from the Annual improvements
project (2009)
• NZ IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (revised 2007)
• NZ IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows
• NZ IAS 18 Revenue
• NZ IAS 36 Impairment of Assets
• NZ IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
Improvements to NZ IFRSs – amendments to NZ IFRS arising from the Annual improvements
project (2010)
• IFRS 3 Business Combinations
• NZ IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosure
• NZ IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
• NZ IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation
• NZ IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
The adoption of the above amendments resulted in changes to accounting policies but had no
significant impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
Accounting standards issued but not yet effective
Improvements to NZ IFRSs – amendments to NZ IFRS arising from the Annual improvements
project (2010)
Amendments to NZ IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosure will emphasise the interaction
between quantitative and qualitative disclosures and the nature and extent of risks associated
with financial instruments. The standard is effective from 1 January 2011. The standard applies
to the Group from 1 July 2011. The standard will have a presentation and disclosure impact only.
Amendments to NZ IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Revised 2007) clarifies that an
entity will present an analysis of other comprehensive income for each component of equity,
either in the statement of changes in equity or in the notes to the financial statements. The
standard is effective from 1 January 2011. The standard applies to the Group from 1 July 2011.
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The standard will have a presentation and disclosure impact only.
NZ IAS 24 Revised Related Party Disclosures (Revised 2009)
The revised standard simplifies the definition of a related party, clarifying its intended meaning
and eliminating inconsistencies from the definition. The standard is effective from 1 January 2011.
The standard applies to the Group from 1 July 2011. The standard will have a presentation and
disclosure impact only.
NZ IFRS 7 Amendments to NZ IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
The amendments enhance the transparency of disclosure requirements for the transfer of financial
assets. The standard is effective from 1 July 2011. The standard applies to the Group from 1 July 2011.
The standard will have a presentation and disclosure impact only.

NZ IFRS 9 (2009) Financial Instruments
NZ IFRS 9 (2009) includes requirements for the classification and measurement of financial
assets resulting from the first part of Phase 1 of the IASB’s project to replace NZ IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The standard is effective from 1 January 2013.
The standard applies to the Group from 1 July 2013. The standard will have a presentation and
disclosure impact only.
FRS 44 New Zealand Additional Disclosures
FRS 44 is a consequence of the joint Trans-Tasman Convergence project of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and Financial Reporting Standards Board (FRSB).
The standard relocates New Zealand specific disclosures from other standards to one place
and revises disclosures for compliance with NZ IFRS, the statutory reporting basis, audit fees
and the reconciliation of net operating cash flow to profit or loss.

(v) Financial assets

Investments and financial assets in the scope of NZ IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are categorised as either financial assets at fair value through the surplus or deficit,
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, or available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. Designation is
re-evaluated at each financial year end, but there are restrictions on reclassifying to other categories.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
assets not at fair value through the surplus or deficit, directly attributable transaction costs.

Recognition and derecognition
All normal purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that
NZICA commits to purchase the asset. Normal purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets under contracts that require delivery of the assets within the period established generally by
regulation or convention in the market place. Financial assets are derecognised when the right to
receive cash flows from the financial assets has expired or been transferred.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in the surplus or deficit when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired. These are included in current assets, except for those with
maturities greater than 12 months after balance date, which are classified as non-current.
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(w) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance
of the arrangement at inception date, whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if
that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Group as lessee
Capitalised lease assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of
the asset and the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain
ownership by the end of the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating expense in the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Operating lease incentives
are recognised as a liability when received and subsequently reduced by allocating lease
payments between rental expense and reduction of the liability.

(x) Comparative information

Certain prior year comparatives have been amended to align with current year disclosures.
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1

Revenue

Parent
2011

Parent
2010

Group
2011

Group
2010

Subscription and application fees

20,096

19,620

20,096

19,617

Professional competency course fees

2,079

-

5,161

4,839

Professional development

4,057

3,452

4,057

3,452

1,510

1,614

1,510

1,614

598

644

598

644

1,029

583

1,029

583

Publications

240

365

240

365

Interest income

575

423

669

612

-

500

-

-

1,756

1,476

1,758

1,573

31,940

28,677

35,118

33,299

Parent
2011

Parent
2010

Group
2011

Group
2010

Directors fees and expenses

321

290

321

296

Office bearers’ honoraria

179

189

179

189

171

182

171

182

164

164

164

164

96

71

96

81

Practice review fees

Journal revenue
Partnership Programme and sponsorship

Dividend received
Other

2

Other expenses includes the
following items:

Impairment of trade receivables
(bad and doubtful debts)

Note

6

Fees paid to auditor for other services
(professional development course
presentation and other)
Audit fees (for the audit of the
financial statements)
Impairment of intangible assets

10

126

-

126

-

Recovery of provisions

15

-

(143)

-

(143)

Net foreign exchange loss on
overseas translations

42

80

42

80

Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

29

61

29

61

4

9

4

9

Donations
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3

Income tax expense

Parent
2011

Parent
2010

Group
2011

Group
2010

Current year expense

-

-

-

-

Total current tax (benefit)/expense

-

-

-

-

35

(4)

35

(4)

(35)

4

(35)

4

Total deferred tax (benefit)/expense

-

-

-

-

Total income tax (benefit)/expense

-

-

-

-

(126)

1,340

786

1,568

(38)

402

236

470

80

48

80

48

(10)

(151)

8

(1)

(1,180)

(1,150)

(1,180)

(1,150)

-

114

-

114

Losses to be utilised by subsidiary

266

190

-

-

Deferred tax assets not recognised

917

397

895

369

Under/(over) provided in prior periods

(35)

150

(39)

150

-

-

-

-

Current tax

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Deferred tax
Movements in temporary differences
Adjustments for prior years

Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Surplus/(deficit) before income tax

Prima facie income tax using NZICA’s
domestic tax rate of 30% (2010: 30%)
Tax effects of adjustments:
Non-deductible expenses
Non-assessable income
Non-taxable transactions with members
Effect of tax rate change

Total income tax (benefit)/expense
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4 Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances
Call deposits
Short-term deposits

Parent
2011

Parent
2010

Group
2011

Group
2010

307

240

307

309

4,161

2,585

4,161

3,012

-

1,001

-

1,001

4,468

3,826

4,468

4,322

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximate their fair value due to their shortterm nature.
Refer to note 5 for details of restricted funds included within cash and cash equivalents.

5

Cash and cash equivalents and investments
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Parent
2011

Parent
2010

Group
2011

Group
2010

4,468

3,826

4,468

4,322

5,167

6,088

5,167

6,088

9,635

9,914

9,635

10,410

The carrying value of investments approximate their fair value due to their short-term nature.
There are no funds held on deposit on behalf of ABEL at 30 June 2011 as the business was amalgamated
into the Parent on 1 January 2011. In 2010 there was $4,600,000 of cash and cash equivalents and
investments in the Parent that were restricted funds because they were held on trust for ABEL.
Income derived from the Winton Bear deposit is used to provide tax education, including tax
material contained in NZICA’s library. However, distribution of the capital of $12,000 (2010: $11,000)
is restricted.
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6 Trade and other receivables

Parent
2011

Parent
2010

Group
2011

Group
2010

1,165

1,045

1,165

1,046

-

42

-

-

Prepayments

306

268

306

497

Goods and services tax

139

33

139

114

Other receivables

260

222

260

222

(457)

(370)

(457)

(370)

1,413

1,240

1,413

1,509

Trade receivables from non-related parties
Receivable from subsidiary and related parties

Less: provision for impairment
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The carrying value of trade and other receivables approximate their fair value due to their
short-term nature. The calculation of the provision for impairment has been based on analysis
of NZICA’s losses in previous periods and review of specific trade and other receivables.
The carrying amount of receivables that would otherwise be past due or impaired, whose
terms have been renegotiated, is nil (2010: nil) for the Parent and Group.
The movement in the provision for impairment of receivables is as follows:
Parent
2011

Parent
2010

Group
2011

Group
2010

(370)

(247)

(370)

(247)

(171)

(182)

(171)

(182)

84

59

84

59

(457)

(370)

(457)

(370)

Parent
2011

Parent
2010

Group
2011

Group
2010

Prior year income tax receivable brought forward

3

297

9

332

Resident withholding tax paid

-

-

-

5

Provisional tax paid

-

4

-

-

Refunds received

-

(298)

(6)

(328)

3

3

3

9

Balance at 1 July
Additional provisions made during the year
Provision used during the year
Balance at 30 June

7

Income tax receivable
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8 Inventories

Books and periodicals

Parent
2011

Parent
2010

Group
2011

Group
2010

20

5

20

15

20

5

20

15

In 2011, the cost of inventories sold recognised in operating expenses for the Parent and Group
amounted to $32,000 (2010: $70,000) and the write-down of inventories to net realisable value
amounted to nil (2010: $27,000).
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9 Property, plant and equipment
Parent and Group

Library

Computer
equipment

Equipment
general

Furniture
& fittings

Leasehold
alterations

Motor
vehicle

Total

Balance at 1 July 2009

81

2,163

904

894

2,537

-

6,579

Additions

15

518

469

946

1,790

21

3,759

Disposals

-

(318)

(140)

(441)

(110)

-

(1,009)

Balance at 30 June 2010

96

2,363

1,233

1,399

4,217

21

9,329

Balance at 1 July 2010

96

2,363

1,233

1,399

4,217

21

9,329

Additions

18

441

32

25

289

33

838

Disposals

-

(222)

(152)

(68)

-

-

(442)

114

2,582

1,113

1,356

4,506

54

9,725

(22)

(1,945)

(784)

(479)

(105)

-

(3,335)

-

-

(1)

(2)

(21)

-

(24)

(15)

(229)

(90)

(99)

(216)

(2)

(651)

-

317

140

395

101

-

953

Balance at 30 June 2010

(37)

(1,857)

(735)

(185)

(241)

(2)

(3,057)

Balance at 1 July 2010

(37)

(1,857)

(735)

(185)

(241)

(2)

(3,057)

Depreciation charge
for the year

(16)

(342)

(170)

(145)

(313)

(12)

(998)

-

210

144

52

-

-

406

(53)

(1,989)

(761)

(278)

(554)

(14)

(3,649)

At 1 July 2009

59

218

120

415

2,432

-

3,244

At 30 June 2010

59

506

498

1,214

3,976

19

6,272

At 1 July 2010

59

506

498

1,214

3,976

19

6,272

At 30 June 2011

61

593

352

1,078

3,952

40

6,076

Cost

Balance at 30 June 2011
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses
Balance at 1 July 2009
Adjustment for write-offs
Depreciation charge
for the year
Disposals

Disposals
Balance at 30 June 2011

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Carrying amounts
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9 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
NZICA premises located in Christchurch were affected by the Christchurch earthquake on
22 February 2011. The premises were unable to be occupied after the earthquake. During the period
1 July to 31 December 2010 ABEL had the use of certain assets owned by the Parent and were
charged a management fee for their use. The depreciation charges above include amounts charged
to the subsidiary for assets owned by NZICA during that period.
NZICA relocated its Auckland office premises in July 2010. Prior to 30 June 2010 NZICA had incurred
fit-out costs for leasehold alterations to the new premises of $573,000, computer equipment of
$49,000, furniture & fittings of $323,000 and office equipment of $176,000, which are included in
the prior year figures in the table above.
Property, plant and equipment installed in the existing Auckland premises at 30 June 2010 with
a net book value of $83,000 with no recoverable value on relocation were written off during the
prior year.

86

2011 ANNUAL REPORT New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants

in thousands of New Zealand dollars

10 Intangible assets

Parent

Group

Software

Development
costs

Total

Software

Development
costs

Total

1,740

-

1,740

1,849

197

2,046

Additions

648

-

648

648

33

681

Disposals

(818)

-

(818)

(818)

-

(818)

Balance at 30 June 2010

1,570

-

1,570

1,679

230

1,909

Balance at 1 July 2010

1,570

-

1,570

1,679

230

1,909

Additions

713

-

713

713

-

713

Disposals

(179)

-

(179)

(179)

-

(179)

Balance at 30 June 2011

2,104

-

2,104

2,213

230

2,443

(1,499)

-

(1,499)

(1,608)

(140)

(1,748)

(201)

-

(201)

(201)

(51)

(252)

818

-

818

818

-

818

Balance at 30 June 2010

(882)

-

(882)

(991)

(191)

(1,182)

Balance at 1 July 2010

(882)

-

(882)

(991)

(191)

(1,182)

Amortisation charge
for the year

(368)

-

(368)

(368)

(39)

(407)

177

-

177

177

-

177

(126)

-

(126)

(126)

-

(126)

(1,199)

-

(1,199)

(1,308)

(230)

(1,538)

241

-

241

241

57

298

At 30 June 2010

688

-

688

688

39

727

At 1 July 2010

688

-

688

688

39

727

At 30 June 2011

905

-

905

905

-

905

Cost
Balance at 1 July 2009

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses
Balance at 1 July 2009
Amortisation charge
for the year
Disposals

Disposals
Impairment
Balance at 30 June 2011
Carrying amounts
At 1 July 2009

Impairment
NZICA’s website asset has been impaired by $126,000 due to lack of certainty around timing
and value of revenue streams that will be generated by this portion of expenditure on the
website development.
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11 Investment in subsidiary
NZICA has the following investment in its subsidiary.

Advanced Business Education Limited (ABEL)

Parent
2011

Parent
2010

-

250

-

250

ABEL was liquidated voluntarily by the Parent during the year. At 30 June 2010 NZICA held 100% of
the shareholding in ABEL, which was domiciled in New Zealand. The principal activity of ABEL was
to provide NZICA’s requirements for the development and assessment of professional competence
for those seeking membership of NZICA’s colleges.

12 Trade and other payables and liabilities
Parent
2011

Parent
2010

Group
2011

Group
2010

704

350

704

630

Deferred lease incentives

67

67

67

67

Payable to related parties

40

31

40

31

1,808

2,231

1,808

2,286

2,619

2,679

2,619

3,014

730

769

730

769

730

769

730

769

Current
Trade payables to non-related parties

Accrued expenses

Non-current
Deferred lease incentives

Trade and other payables and liabilities are non-interest bearing. The carrying value of trade and
other payables approximate their fair value due to their short-term nature.
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13 Employee benefits

Parent
2011

Parent
2010

Group
2011

Group
2010

22

16

22

16

Liability for annual leave

529

500

529

500

Payroll accrual

595

465

595

465

1,146

981

1,146

981

32

25

32

25

32

25

32

25

Current
Liability for long-service leave

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Non-current
Liability for long-service leave

The non-current portion of the long-service leave liability is calculated based on NZICA’s
estimate of the value of the unvested liability at the end of the vesting period discounted by
an appropriate discount rate. The current portion of the long-service leave liability represents
the actual value of the liability that has already vested valued at current pay rates.

14 Deferred tax assets and liabilities
a) Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following.
Assets
Parent and Group
Net tax asset/(liability)

Liabilities

Net

2011

2010

2011

2010

2011

2010

-

-

-

-

-

-

Movements in temporary differences during the year were as follows.
Parent and Group

Balance
1 July 2009

Recognised
in surplus
or deficit

Balance
30 June 2010

Recognised
in surplus
or deficit

Balance
30 June 2011

-

-

-

-

-
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14 Deferred tax assets and liabilities (continued)
b) Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Movements in unrecognised deferred tax assets during the year were as follows.
Parent

Balance
1 July 09

Movements
in surplus
or deficit

Movements
in other
comprehensive
income

Balance
30 June 10

Movements
in surplus or
deficit

Movements
in other
comprehensive
income

Balance
30 June 11

Deductible
temporary
differences

156

(68)

-

88

20

-

108

Tax losses

1,125

465

-

1,590

897

-

2,487

1,281

397

-

1,678

917

-

2,595

Movements
in surplus
or deficit

Movements
in other
comprehensive
income

Movements
in surplus or
deficit

Movements
in other
comprehensive
income

Balance
30 June 11

Group

Balance
1 July 09

Balance
30 June
10

Deductible
temporary
differences

206

(96)

-

110

(2)

-

108

Tax losses

1,125

465

-

1,590

897

-

2,487

1,331

369

-

1,700

895

-

2,595

Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences of $386,000 (Parent) (2010: $293,000) and
$386,000 (Group) (2010: $367,000) and unutilised losses of $8,881,000 (2010: $5,679,000) for the
Parent and Group have not been recognised due to the uncertainty of recoverability. As at 30 June
2011, the Group solely consists of the Parent entity.
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15 Provisions

Parent and Group
Refurbishment
provision

Premises
provision

Total provisions

Balance at 1 July 2009

280

176

456

Provisions made during the year

(137)

(176)

(313)

Recovery of provisions

(143)

-

(143)

-

-

-

-

-

-

Current

-

-

-

Non-current

-

-

-

Balance at 1 July 2010

-

-

-

Provisions used during the year

-

-

-

Recovery of provisions

-

-

-

Balance at 30 June 2011

-

-

-

Current

-

-

-

Non-current

-

-

-

Balance at 30 June 2010
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Refurbishment provision
There was no refurbishment provision in the current year. During the year to 30 June 2009,
NZICA created a provision to refurbish the premises upon exiting the lease. The unused
portion of the provision was released to the surplus or deficit in the year ended 30 June 2010.
Premises provision
There are no premises provisions in the current year. NZICA relocated its national office
premises in August 2009 but was liable for rent on its former premises until December 2009.
NZICA provided for the rent expense from departure until the lease termination date. The
amount provided was used to off-set actual refurbishment costs incurred and the remainder
was released to the surplus or deficit in the prior year.

16 Members’ funds
NZICA members’ funds
NZICA members’ funds represents accumulated surpluses retained by NZICA. On 1 January 2011 the
Parent purchased the business of its wholly owned subsidiary, ABEL, using the purchase method.
Special Interest Groups’ funds
Special Interest Group (SIG) activities create revenue and expenditure which is recorded in the
surplus or deficit. Qualifying surpluses or deficits are transferred to SIG funds in the Statement
of Financial Position. These SIG funds represent unspent funds contributed by members of
these groups, and are to be specifically used for SIG activities.
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17 Reconciliation of the surplus/(deficit) for the period with net cash flows from operating activities
Parent
2011

Parent
2010

Group
2011

Group
2010

(126)

1,340

786

1,568

-

(500)

-

-

45

46

128

246

1,366

853

1,405

903

126

-

126

-

Bad debts written off

84

59

84

59

Change in doubtful debts

87

123

87

123

Assets written off

-

83

-

83

Inventories written down

-

27

-

27

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment

29

61

29

61

Foreign exchange loss

42

-

42

-

(173)

386

96

167

(15)

25

(5)

33

(99)

1,008

(434)

871

172

105

172

105

1,165

(190)

(1,414)

72

Decrease/(increase) in income tax

-

294

6

323

(Decrease)/Increase in provisions

-

(456)

-

(456)

(576)

-

-

-

474

1,172

(1,579)

1,115

2,127

3,264

1,108

4,185

Surplus/(deficit) after income tax
Adjusted for:
Dividend income classified as investing activities
Items classified as investing/financing activities

Add back non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment

Movements in working capital:
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other
payables and liabilities
Increase in employee benefits
(Decrease)/increase in income in advance

Net working capital acquired on ABEL amalgamation
Net movement in working capital
Net cash inflow from operating activities
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18 Leases as lessee
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows.

Less than one year
Between one and five years
More than five years

Parent
2011

Parent
2010

Group
2011

Group
2010

1,767

1,659

1,767

1,680

6,839

6,274

6,839

6,282

10,548

11,414

10,548

11,414

19,154

19,347

19,154

19,376

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NZICA leases premises and a franking machine under operating leases. The premises leases
typically run for a period of 10 years and the franking machine lease runs for a period of
four years, with options to renew. In the case of leased premises, lease payments are increased
periodically to reflect market rentals. No leases include contingent rentals.
During the year ended 30 June 2011, $1,558,000 (Parent) and $1,561,000 (Group) was recognised
as an expense in the surplus or deficit in respect of operating leases (2010: $1,426,000 (Parent)
and $1,527,000 (Group)).
NZICA premises located in Christchurch were affected by the Christchurch earthquake on
22 February 2011. The premises were unable to be occupied after the earthquake.
NZICA entered into a lease for new premises effective 1 March 2011. Lease commitments
for the current year reflect the new Christchurch premises lease obligations.
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19 Financial instruments
Parent
2011

Parent
2010

Group
2011

Group
2010

4,468

3,826

4,468

4,322

Trade receivables from non-related parties

1,165

1,045

1,165

1,046

Receivable from subsidiary and related parties

-

42

-

-

260

222

260

222

5,167

6,088

5,167

6,088

11,060

11,223

11,060

11,678

744

381

744

661

Funds held on deposit for subsidiary

-

4,600

-

-

Total financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost

744

4,981

744

661

Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Other receivables
Investments
Total loans and receivables

Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost
Trade and related party payables

The carrying value of financial instruments approximates their fair value.
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign exchange risks arise in the normal course of
NZICA’s operations. Management carefully manages such risks in order to minimise any losses that
could adversely impact on the Group financial results, as detailed below.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a third party will default on its obligations to NZICA, causing NZICA
to incur a loss. The financial instruments, which potentially subject NZICA to credit risk, consist
principally of cash and cash equivalents, investments and trade and other receivables.
In the normal course of business, NZICA incurs credit risk from trade and other receivables and
transactions with banking institutions. NZICA manages its exposure to credit risk by:
• only holding bank balances and short-term deposits with New Zealand and off-shore registered
banking institutions
• maintaining credit control procedures over trade and other receivables.
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19 Financial instruments (continued)
The maximum exposure at balance date is equal to the total amount of cash and cash
equivalents, investments and trade and other receivables disclosed in the Statement of Financial
Position. Trade and other receivables considered uncollectible have been written off and doubtful
debts have been adequately provided for. NZICA has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
NZICA does not require any collateral or security to support financial instruments and other debts
it holds, due to the low risk associated with the realisation of these instruments.
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Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that NZICA will not have sufficient liquid funds to meet its commitments
as they fall due. Liquidity risk management is achieved by forecasting and monitoring cash flows on
a daily basis. The tenure of investments is managed to ensure that funds mature in appropriate
timeframes to maintain operational liquidity. All trade and related party liabilities are contractually
repayable within 30 days.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of NZICA’s investments will fluctuate due to changes
in interest rates. Interest rate risk is managed by limiting investments to short-term deposits
held until maturity. The interest rate risk associated with such deposits is considered minimal.
NZICA has no borrowings and accordingly no interest rate risk on liabilities.
Foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. NZICA’s branches in the
United Kingdom and Australia operate separate bank accounts in local currency. NZICA incurs
foreign exchange risk as a result of the conversion of foreign currency balances held in these
bank accounts to New Zealand dollars at balance date. The foreign exchange risk associated
with these balances is considered minimal and therefore NZICA does not hedge this foreign
currency exposure.
Cash flow hedges
Cash flows from the cash flow hedges occurred and affect the surplus or deficit during the
prior financial year. The effect was to release the cash flow hedge reserve from the year ending
30 June 2009 financial year to the surplus or deficit for the prior year. Hedge accounting was
not used prior to the year ending 30 June 2009 and has not been used in the current year.
Sensitivity analysis
In managing interest rate risk the Group aims to reduce the impact of short-term fluctuations
on the Group’s earnings by entering into fixed interest rate deposits. The Group also maintains
call accounts with variable interest rates. At year end, a movement of up or down of one
percentage point in interest rates would affect the Group’s surplus and other comprehensive
income up or down by $96,000 (2010: $104,000) (Parent: $96,000; 2010: $99,000).
NZICA operates branches in the United Kingdom and Australia and a movement of one percentage
point in the value of the New Zealand dollar against the respective foreign currencies would have
minimal impact on the Group’s surplus and other comprehensive income for the 2010 and 2011
financial years.
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19 Financial instruments (continued)
Quantitative disclosures
As at 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2010, all overdue receivables have been assessed for impairment and
appropriate provisions applied. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum
credit exposure. The status of receivables at the reporting date is as follows:
2011
Parent

2010

Gross

Impairment

Net

Gross

Impairment

Net

Not past due

472

-

472

398

-

398

Past due 1-30 days

176

-

176

211

-

211

Past due 31-60 days

60

-

60

65

-

65

Past due 61-180 days

145

(145)

-

116

(115)

1

Past due 181-365 days

89

(89)

-

66

(66)

-

Past due more than 1 year

223

(223)

-

189

(189)

-

1,165

(457)

708

1,045

(370)

675

2011
Group

96

2010

Gross

Impairment

Net

Gross

Impairment

Net

Not past due

472

-

472

399

-

399

Past due 1-30 days

176

-

176

211

-

211

Past due 31-60 days

60

-

60

65

-

65

Past due 61-180 days

145

(145)

-

116

(115)

1

Past due 181-365 days

89

(89)

-

66

(66)

-

Past due more than 1 year

223

(223)

-

189

(189)

-

1,165

(457)

708

1,046

(370)

676
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20 Related parties
Identity of related parties
NZICA has a related party relationship with its Board members; ABEL (subsidiary company to
31 December 2010); the V E A Halligan Memorial Trust and its Executive Management.
b) Related party transactions

Board
The following were members of the Board during the year:
Ross Jackson (President)***
Richard Austin (Vice President)*
Dinu Harry**

Graham Crombie***
Elizabeth Hickey***
Murray Jack***
Doug McKay***

Allan Newman***
Craig Norgate***
Neil Paviour-Smith***
Hugh Rennie***

* Term commenced in December 2010
** Term completed in November 2010
***Term commenced July 2009
Transactions between NZICA and members of the Board consist of the following
Parent
2011

Parent
2010

Group
2011

Group
2010

79

26

79

26

10

-

10

-

8

-

8

-

18

-

18

-

3

-

3

-

75

91

75

91

4

-

4

-

-

-

-

-

Ross Jackson (Partner in McCulloch & Partners)
Paid to McCulloch & Partners:
Honorarium as Office Bearer & meeting attendances
Amount owing at year end
Received from McCulloch & Partners:
Practice review fees
Richard Austin
Paid to Richard Austin:
Honorarium as Office Bearer
Amount owing at year end
Dinu Harry (Director of Bertelsen Harry Waters Limited)
Paid to Bertelsen Harry Waters Limited:
Honorarium as Office Bearer
Received from Bertelsen Harry Waters Limited:
Practice review fees
Amount owing at year end
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20 Related parties (continued)
Parent
2011

Parent
2010

Group
2011

Group
2010

9

142

9

142

79

58

79

58

6

8

6

8

21

-

21

-

33

28

33

28

3

3

3

3

Board Director fees & meeting attendances

34

28

34

28

Practice reviewer fees

31

53

31

53

Professional development fees

4

8

4

8

174

-

174

-

3

3

3

3

7

6

7

6

10

-

10

-

33

35

33

35

-

2

-

2

3

3

3

3

Graham Crombie (Partner and Chief Executive Officer
of Polson Higgs)
Paid to Polson Higgs:
Professional development fees and other
Board Chairman fees & meeting attendances
Amount owing at year end
Received from Polson Higgs:
Practice review fees
Elizabeth Hickey
Paid to Elizabeth Hickey:
Board Director fees
Amount owing at year end
Murray Jack (Chief Executive of Deloitte)
Paid to Deloitte:

Disciplinary Tribunal and Professional Conduct
Committee fees
Amount owing at year end
Received from Deloitte:
Sponsorship
Practice review fees
Doug McKay (Director and shareholder in WYMAC
Consulting Limited)
Paid to WYMAC Consulting Limited:
Board Director fees
Presenter fees
Amount owing at year end
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20 Related parties (continued)
Parent
2011

Parent
2010

Group
2011

Group
2010

33

28

33

28

3

3

3

3

35

31

35

31

3

3

3

3

33

28

33

28

3

3

3

3

41

31

41

31

3

5

3

5

-

2

-

2

Allan Newman

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Paid to Allan Newman:
Board Director fees
Amount owing at year end
Craig Norgate (Director of MCN Rural Investments Limited)
Paid to MCN Rural Investments Limited:
Board Director fees & meeting attendances
Amount owing at year end
Neil Paviour-Smith
Paid to Neil Paviour-Smith:
Board Director fees
Amount owing at year end
Hugh Rennie
Paid to Hugh Rennie:
Board Director fees
Amount owing at year end
Received from Hugh Rennie:
Room hire/catering

All transactions were conducted on an arm’s length basis. Outstanding balances at year end
are unsecured, interest free and settlement occurs in cash. No debts have been written off in
relation to these related parties during the year.

ABEL
During the year NZICA paid certain expenses on behalf of ABEL, which were subsequently
reimbursed. The total amount of the transactions for the year ended 30 June 2011 with the
subsidiary was $353,000 (2010: $668,000).
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20 Related parties (continued)
There was no amount remaining to be reimbursed at 30 June 2011. The amount remaining
to be reimbursed at 30 June 2010 was $42,000 which was included in trade and other
receivables. The subsidiary declared a dividend of $3,492,000 to the Parent during the year
(2010: $500,000). The dividend was for the value of the net assets of ABEL and was the final
dividend upon voluntary liquidation.
There was no amount held on deposit by NZICA on behalf of ABEL at 30 June 2011 (2010: $4,600,000).

V E A Halligan Memorial Trust
The Group acts as the trustee of the V E A Halligan Memorial Trust (the Trust). The primary
purpose of the Trust is to provide an annual grant to promote the quality, expertise and education
of accountants ordinarily resident in Canterbury other than for the purpose of studying.
The Group has not entered into any transactions with the Trust.

Executive Management
Key management compensations were as follows.
Parent
2011

Parent
2010

Group
2011

Group
2010

2,180

1,798

2,344

2,044

Termination benefits

70

141

70

141

Post employment benefits

21

23

24

28

Long-term employee benefits

6

-

6

6

2,277

1,962

2,444

2,219

Short-term employee benefits

21 Contingent liabilities
There are no contingent liabilities for the Parent or Group at 30 June 2011 (2010: nil).

22 Contingent assets
Following the 22 February 2011 Christchurch earthquake NZICA has made an insurance claim
to recover losses under its insurance policies. The amount of the recovery is yet to be finalised;
however, in August 2011 $200,000 was paid by the insurer to NZICA in relation to the claim. This
amount has not been recognised as income by NZICA as the full and final amount of recovery is
uncertain. It is not practicable at the date of authorising these financial statements to reliably
estimate the overall financial impact of NZICA’s total insurance recovery (2010: nil).
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23 Capital commitments
The Parent and Group had no capital commitments at 30 June 2011 (2010: $1,260,000).
24 Subsequent events

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Other than the information already disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements there are no
other events subsequent to year end that require disclosure in these financial statements (2010: nil).
25 Accounting estimates and judgements
Information on significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in
applying accounting policies which have the most significant effect in the preparation of
these financial statements are included in the following notes.
• Note 3 – income tax expense
NZICA carries on taxable and non-taxable activities. Estimates and judgements have been
used by management in preparing an allocation of income and expenditure to taxable or
non-taxable activities to determine the tax loss for the income year.
• Note 6 – trade and other receivables
Management apply judgement in assessing the carrying value of trade and other
receivables. Receivables are considered impaired when they exceed 90 days. The calculation
of the provision has been based on a review of specific trade and other receivables.
• Note 12 – trade and other payables and liabilities
Deferred lease incentives have been spread over the likely term that national office
and Auckland premises will be occupied. Management’s estimate as to how long
the lease terms will be has been used in determining the terms over which to spread
the incentives.
• Note 13 – employee benefits
The value of employee benefits involves judgement in assessing the non-current portion of
the long-service leave liability. Estimates used in calculating this liability are: the estimated
increase in annual salaries, probability of employees reaching the vesting period, and the
appropriate discount factor to apply in determining the present value of the liability. These
estimates have been based on historical human resource information for NZICA and current
economic data.
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Auditor's Report
To the Members of the New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants (“NZICA”)
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the financial statements of NZICA and Group on pages 67 to 101, which comprise the statement
of financial position of NZICA and Group as at 30 June 2011, statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in members’ funds and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.
This report is made solely to NZICA’s members, as a body, in accordance with the Rules of the New Zealand
Institute of Chartered Accountants. Our audit has been undertaken so that we might state to NZICA’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than NZICA and NZICA’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Board’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Board is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand and for such internal control as the Board determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand). These auditing standards require
that we comply with relevant ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we have considered the internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial
statements that fairly present the matters to which they relate in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe we have obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Certain partners of Ernst & Young have presented for NZICA during the year and preside on various boards and
committees of NZICA.
In addition to this, partners and employees of our firm may deal with NZICA and Group on normal terms within
the ordinary course of trading activities and membership of NZICA and Group.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 67 to 101:
►

comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and

►

present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of NZICA and Group as at 30 June 2011 and
their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended.

29 September 2011
Wellington
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